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Boviory ) 3103201900 wged | 31.03.2018805 wgod

38 2ONEH COT W[HON R (FOOMWTT ﬁéodaiﬁ B3T3

TRTDIRY RTR)TC FTFONYT NBFEOTD TORBAT TOV)

R) DPT, HITB[OTD TONBAT) - -

V) VBT, emgmﬁom 5@712’530(3% 721,309,240 728,293,470

Q) XOdemﬁw 110,710,938 14,579,443

832,020,178 742,872,913

(3$0WD) : 20T JOTT 20T F[WHOTNY S FOTIETIOWD
TONESATT BT (F90L)

(92.872,289)

(BSOWD) : FOTET/OZT AOONPN DTOF T (17,838,650) (14,579,443)
LCEN] (X) 721,309,239 728,293,470
getere]
D) WP, NTTTJOT TONESRATR), - -
Q) ©PT, WITPOWD TONBAT), 1,007,173,489 986,806,171
R) BOTIETIIT - -
%Wt — (R) 1,007,173.,489 986,806,171
(R) +H(R)T 2t 1728482728 | 1,715,099.641
e35e8 : 15 S/ DI e vy
Boviory ) 3103201900 wged | 31.03.2018805 wgod
SN WY W0F 1y
QD) INT DB, INT FBPINED
%éodb@qdaﬁ [N 106,095 91,173
§§J Bewed 596,983,216 886,356,490
3 Sone went TTdB YT Be:ed - -
IROTNLYTT S
aimse:; mgoa)ﬁ%f ?,3362 &705033@2 85,815,579 110,086,865
2y (2) 682,904,890 996,534,528
Q) 93T POTF SN
Ry BezdneQ
3 éong Jo=T agmmw 53%33 Bewed 876,081,613.00 715,851,384
e (@) 876,081,613 715,851,384
(2)+@) B ey 1.558.986.503 | 1,712,385,912
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03308 1 16 0omd mOnd 3y SHonER (@)
Qe 3103201930 wgod | 31.03.2018805 wgod
3IB HONY Y TNONBEAW
238, NIIB0T TONRSAT)
— WTWETDNDT LBDE® 135,701,487 64,290,959
- 2O J0ONT 281,002 445,891
- mg)o@ﬁ BRONE — 0BT RIVONT 239,894 257,607
- YOO JNONT — FOTHWT® [RONR 187,000 230,000
— AYOOR TONTE — VT 20,628 86,256
- 9BT BOONTNW 4,011,533 10,039,522
28 140,441,544 75.350.235
0338 : 17 038 g sanwd
Qe 3103201930 wgod | 31.03.2018805 wged
TP[E TowS 52;371%30 3,629,622 3,752,579
ROBWODTIOT ) WIS LVECNYT W 22,556,335 12,409,500
BeOIMON T EF BOTWOD 2,702,154 -
283 28,888,111 16,162,079
0. €8 1 18 moseeiodonon won wmeo
o 31.03.2019% 31.03.2018¢

BaRReoR SRR

BaRReoR SRR

TOO3REUWITIBONOT WOTW 30N
333 emgsolﬁ@é WIOTVES

T3 B0.27 SeekR)

RETRT D) [TRLE F0TT,

PTG ROWORAT YOIIJ N 3T

B at-livolept! (esséasgw DLV LRNWONTED 3TN

1,878,962,274

3,459,258,088

1,355,481,931

2,498,313,988

WNEAT 30T - 20,000,000
Q3T FOITOF WTFHBOD LSTVOD 16,281,437 13,706,710
283 5.354.501,799 | 3.887.502.629

3368 1 19 ©38 wmeod
Qa0 31.03.201% 31.03.2018¢
BaRneoR SRR BaRReoR SRR
Besed eI W& 83,156,989 64,700,722
QBT STCD 2,680,585 1,443,254
2 85.837.574 66.143.976
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€338 1 20 ome0 ToBNY DdeRd (BR.AY)
Qo 31.03.201% 31.03.2018¢
BaRReoR SRR BaRReoR SRR
@6%@? DB Bk 30@@3% TOWORAT wgﬁ%mﬁo 1,790,579,835 1,287,717,069
W) 9T WII NG DD
2 1,790.579.835 | 1,287.717.069
€338 1 21 2ex Segned
Qo 31.03.201% 31.03.2018¢
adneon SRETY adneon SRETY
IADINIY xoamee; mddé Aeeo d%ﬁ% 2,453,200,320 1,849,759,758
S BOWORT Fewmw PPN 596,270,722 388,134,217
308 ez 52;371%30 190,265,810 59,552,173
283 3.239.736.852 | 2.297.446,148
e38e8 : 22 TR0 XOR IWHeOTY WRSRTBR
Ooned 31.03.201% 31.03.2018¢
dndieon STy dndteor SReTg
STORT TIOIV 6,520,171 7,624,080
BLOWO : @@3663 SRIDIN 6,520,171 6,520,171
28 - 1.103.909
e35e8 : 23 Psot Poyy, SBegnd
Ooned 31.03.201% 31.03.2018¢
dndieon STy dndteor SReTg
ROWY B BRLTITT BT (DWFNW TTFTT ODTOIND 64,894,762 72,281,353
T2.2,86,56,437/- T dBF) (L00T TTRE TR.L14.81.878/-)
QTerBFT BOLRTS (8TE8 B0, 30 Jped) 3,385,114 5,852,552
FOZIOR Tosn 7,753,203 7,097,528
ML TR (8T8 To. 27 (2)B0ecd) 22.630.136 13,017,680
Cd mows ﬁz‘zﬁ% 18,095,617 4,649,979
RQOD BLRED WM 15,815,876 16,961,774
132.574.708 119.860.866
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38 1 24 933 Hgnisd (BR.N¥Q)
Qe 31.03.2019% 31.03.2018¢
dadieon SREWY dadieon SREWY
Cﬁbd?} m:g AREFRHB - 5&&3}5 3,114,534 675,447
THTARH D) ATEIH - TOBIND 1,316,030 1,133,725
Zjadﬁ_oomio 533_30 ARFTHB — 93T 5,115,535 2,495,109
apleTat 5,788,041 5,756,627
weéwdé 53@%71@0 6,168,116 5,577,653
OLETOBY B TFT DFND 1,593,358 1,167,708
TR Kn@g 0T d?,gm#o 3,626,735 3,782,887
ROBR 3B ZoRNRWH 898,795 3,594,167
e‘DdJé@@ 5333 Qe0T &Q%mfo 10,191,343 2,919,604
TOTPRCFTEET w0l T BRBMOOIN ACRT BTN 987,180 6,982,580

(83Te8 B0.46 Jpew)

P30 52;371@;0 2,058,056 1,583,945
[P0 DN 181,301 841,318
TOTo DB, SeDI AN, 986,579 729,960
@%@@&@eqﬁ%d JeYARI! (@3?&55 T0.32 J0eR) 1,239,000 668,800
TRT=0ed DRFNRD 452,832 694,383
EOT IO WANT BN 99,467 785,362
méof Sae%ﬁ% 144,671 172,000
9028 ma’g BRDODTT DRDFNLD 177,749 182,539
30303 635& T3S 53&% 99,000 100,000
AW 251,665 59,224
QT FOOMOTOR wéwﬂ@ — BOTIETOAT AOON 4,276,493 -
BANY TRTIWOOT ST IF, 12,317 -
QT IIC AP TORTS em% 6,000 161,000
mmsmogomd TOTOT PR BRTN 10,000,000 -
m@ergdo DN 1,253,053 2,033,745
) 60,037.850 42,097,783
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wgd 25 meowas g (BR.NY)
31.03.2019 31.03.2018¢
dadieon SREWQ dadieon SREWY
WROD® FONY wr§ BT BoR ool FevTT WG - 694,213
BRITT AYOW TIE WRNS WG - 206,888
RS - 901,101

83308 1 26 %008 w=POH - $wmecd / (Begned)

31.03.2019 31.03.2018¢
BaRReoR SRETY BaRReoR SRR
HO0T YTHOD BTOR (V8 NTPRE FeS WR) 3,261,808 71,050
3,261,808 71,050
SO0 : HONT LTWHOD d?}% - 747,418
HODT BJRFNY SWOOD WBRIFH — BeRBNY Hed3 2@ 12,815,666 -
HOOT JIFNY STODN TR 998,197 -
HODT BTHOD DDENL 3,331,553 -
17,145,416 747,418
{ge Beowmed? (13.883.608) (676,368)
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2) 93T I

03508 27: womnm SRRE 0 IR ITRE @god
SYARFES BoIHoB aax 158 wgedh Hurs

(&) : Pzos SESIAES (@w%u)

1. svdnsh (Br.NGD)

QTORD 31.03.2019 31.03.2018
0033008 BT (JRFT BTOLTB) 7.31% 6.83%
003N TT (SJHFT 208 E) 7.10% 7.31%
TOTOT ToorenyyY Ty 3T 6.00% 6.00%
eexme BANY e’ S0 TT 7.10% 7.31%
2. ReEmoine F1g SPYTOR WITRSESRY, 30T Jeg

QTORD 31.03.2019 31.03.2018
JHFT $TOPFTYT0Z BRTMOOENY TFT TPV, 8.38.77.881 8.21,65,074
THTZ TBROTIIND - -
SEE 54,90,924 56.91,002
@O Bewo 3, 24,57.289 22,42,954

00T Rewo W3

RRWDRRIIT &P, / (XRP)

wegr 35,/ (@)

TORSAT FOBOREFN

(1.75.25.278)

(1,67,03,628)

BRBMOINS ¢S LswRme (90F)/ 8% 1.98.68.393 (36.69.585)
IR w03 BIYTOZ BRBMOINT TRT P, 9.41,69.209 8.38.,77.881
3. Brerm @y ROPIFNIT SPORIR WERTBRLTY, 0BT Jtd:

Do 31.03.2019 31.03.2018
BRFT STOPTYTOZ dpewmo BANY T9,00BS 7,08,60,201 7,86,98,411
THETE BROTOESENLD - -
clpemme BANY S 068 N3 50.15.128 52,69.043
TO8RN 1,30,17,680 34,66,663
TRRBAT APFODEND (1.75.25.278) (1,67,03,628)
odeexmo SANY RS DTNTY TOF(SR) 1,71,341 1,29,712
JRFT ©oZBOT0Z 0deekT SBANY TOPIRZ &P, 7,15,39,072 7,08,60,201
4. clremme wynd TREDOINT IPYNIRY RO TJed

DToRD 31.03.2019 31.03.2018
TR $005TABOZ BrenT SANY Iz TP, 7,08,60.201 7.86.98.411
RIS BROTVIIND - -
odeekTo SANY et [BNE NY3 51,86,469 53,98,755
TO8RND 1,30,17,680 34,66,663
TOREAT POLERD (1.75.25.278) (1.67.03,628)
JRFT ©oZBOT0OZ oSk SBANY Jx &P, 7,15,39,072 7,08,60,201
QONE e (2.26.30,136) (1,30.17,680)
Odpenm SANY ReOT WOPBATIOT TWT WAV NYS 171,341 129,712

71

LIt 1
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5. Zoriedam QIwiite” ned /87 - (BR.NYY)
Q=oRD 31.03.2019 31.03.2018
TFT [RET ABPROTD NOF/(IR)-BRBMOIRD (1.98.68.,393) 36,69,585
TAT [RET TPNRETD NOF/(IF)-03RewTD SAND 1,71,341 1,29,712
TAT SRET 2D, NOT/(SK) (1,96,97,051) 37.99,297
TFZ IRFBY OIAT ITRNATD NOF/(IR) (1,96,97,051) 37.99,297
BARZ BRET ©OTTY THEATT DTPEdTD N9 A(IH) - -
6. 33 Qo TegohQ Wonedm RBegned:
QFORD 31.03.2019 31.03.2018
AT [RED @Oéécﬁ@qcéoé TRBMOOENY TXT 5@@5 9,41,69,209 8.,38,77,881
AT VXD ©0o3TIF0Z odeemTo GANY Jwedd 7,15,39,072 7,08,60,201

25 & (&

ong JeRE 38

(2.26.30.136)

(1,30,17,680)

(&

33 SREBY HDIAQT ARPRRT NOF/(FT)

38 DFOF TeIODY VOMCHIT DFY 3/(RT0IRD) (2.26.30,136) (1,30.17.,680)
7. oo w3y SFE Do roThITeRT Sgre:

BaveTy 3 31.03.2019 31.03.2018
w9 ez 52,;3 24,57,289 22,42,954
%o0T Rewd 52;3 - dpexd 36%5@ - 1,41,52,064
N ﬁz;s 54,90,924 56,91,002
Spexme GANY e J0IT N9E (50.15,128) (52,69,043)
BRVBDNPVRIR :@@é N(==P) - -
VEHE TP, (BBR?) - -
TRT IRFTQY BONBRRT IRY DBRRT N9F(ST) (1.96.97.051) 37,99,297
g WD) IF TLYONY TORSIRT [N 2,26,30,136 1,30,17,680
833e8-27 () : 3oy SESTATEN (Reg Te3)
1. vvensh

BaveTy 3 31.03.2019 31.03.2018
OO TT (VRFT $T0LII) 7.31% 6.83%
00330008 TT (IR @oa’é%é) 7.10% 7.31%
TOTOT T@ENYY TLFT 3T 6.00% 6.00%

030 T 839_0071%3 20003 3300NT TT

7.10%

7.31%
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2. Resdmdine Zx3 @Q’F@»‘-‘j WRRSBRIRY, S0e0T0F Teg (d@.ﬂ@@)

Q=B 31.03.2019 31.03.2018
JRFT STOPTIT0Z BRTMOOENY TFT IO, 3.97,10,626 4,66,97.880
ROTZ BROTIIND - -
e 5?5* 25,99,521 28.91,610
SR oo ﬁzsi 24,95,550 21,93,096
SRWIRRVT TP, / (XRP) - -
QBHE TP, / (XRP) - -
QeRT N”Deaﬁgﬁ%ﬂo (82,98,933) (87,21,981)
BRBMOING e VPRI N9E/(IF) 86.61,530 (33,49,979)
DRET @OSCS@ZSO@ JRBMROING & 6 K@@ 4,51,68,294 3,97,10,626
3. e wne s WSOHYR WESRTHBRYEY 0T Tyl

Q=0 31.03.2019 31.03.2018
TTET S005TAFOZ dnenTe BANY 3wl 4,10,11,230 4,29,74,205
RRETZ BROTEIENL - -
03Re T eﬁﬁgﬁ@é =oees E’Oéegé nesd 26,94,595 35,96,303
Teednned - 37,23,675
TOBEAT FRPOGR (82.98,933) (87.21,981)
clRemT® BATY Hed OTPNRRT® R93/(ST) 68,211 (5.60,972)
THET ©oZBYFOT BeexTe BANY Jwd 3.54.75.103 4,10,11,230
4. Bnemm Band WEDH PSR, 3RO Ted

Q= 31.03.2019 31.03.2018
SHFT $ToPTYT0Z odeekTo BANY § w3 4,10,11,230 4,29,74,205
TRHETZ BROTREIENL - -
om0 @%)Jﬁ%f =oees m§@§ nes 27,62,805 30,35,331
Jeedningd - 37,23,675
TOBEAT FPORRD (82.98,933) (87.21,981)
SREOBTYT BeexTe MY Todeesd B3 3.54.75.103 4,10,11,230
AN QeRE 3&3 (96.,93,191) 13,00,604
dpexTe BNy e WOTRBAT O %zs@p JADT NS - -
5. mohaaa aswnceme ned /Sy

Q=B 31.03.2019 31.03.2018
TRY SHETRN ABPRT R9S/(FT)-BRBMOIRD (86.61,530) 33.49.979
TRE DRETN QTPROTD N9 /(SF)-03ReBTD SAND 68.211 (5,60,972)
TET IRETN 208 TF/(IR) (85.93.319) (27,89,007)
THT wws-‘d@ mmém QTRRT N9F/(SH) (85,93.319) (27.89.007)
TR STFOZTY MOTVSATT DTPREOTD NOT/(I) - -

73
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6. 23 DT Ty ) oy WP IFE Tedne, ST Segned (BR.N$Y)

Q=0 31.03.2019 31.03.2018
DRET @oésdgcé)oé JPBMROING @k‘i 5@@6 4,51,68,294 3,97,10,626
BRET WOZTYFOZ Adnexmw BANY Jedd 3,54,75,103 4,10,11,230
DENY DedE 32 (96,93.191) 13,00,604
MNEXTT VBPAT NOE/(IH) - -
%{pé QTTFD BBONY MOTEXT AT B /(%0e0) (96.93.191) 13,00,604
7. oo 3y SFE Q[0 TeehQ RIS Hegned

DT3RS 31.03.2019 31.03.2018
?33@2 ESISovD) dzg 24,95,550 21,93,096
&)% 5?,% 25,99,521 28,91,610
BRVBDNPPRIT :@@8 N(ERR) - -
VEHE [P, (BBW) - -
TIREBY HHEIRT JFY ABPROTD (M9F)/5F, 86.61,530 (33,49,979)
WP T IFB DBITY TEONQ MOTVSART WP 1,37.56.,601 17,34,727
©2e8-27 (2) : <°3TT ﬂaozsémfo (@md’.@erg o)
1. evensh

Q=0 31.03.2019 31.03.2018
OO3PONE T3 (VRFT BT0LTI) 7.31% 6.83%
00350008 TT (JRFT @oéﬂ) 7.10% 7.31%
TOTOT T@ENYY T T 6.00% 6.00%
dpexTe BANY e oD TT Y aY
2. Rammoiny Zt3 SPOROS LEoEERES), 3RO T

Q=B 31.03.2019 31.03.2018
TR @do&jd@qcéoé JRHBMOOINY @‘ﬁi :@Ué 48,17,620 54,01,390
mdcsmé TROTEIBND - -
w% dz;s 3,52,168 3,68,915
w9 Rewo B - -
BRVDRRVT P, / (BB®) - -
AIHE Z@@s / (BTP) - -
TOBSAT ﬁaoasémfo (TOTSRATVFH)T) - -
BRABROING e ABPROT N9E/ (IF) 4,70.816 9,52,685
BRET WOZTYTOZ BHVMOOING TAT &P 56,40,604 48,17,620
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3. clremme wynd FRBSOHYR WHRTHBRIRY RO Ty

(BR.IYD)

SEONSd

31.03.2019

31.03.2018

SRS ST0PFBIF O odeexme SANY Fwd

HETE TROTEIBND

o80T BANRY 2vees @@eg@ no3

3eednned

TRBSAT ﬁa@zsén@éo (0TS TRBTTHD)

odpexm BANY e DTPRETD NOF/(IT)

SRS ©o8TYFOZ cdnerTe BANY Jwed

4. clrewme wynd mOBISONTY, BROTT TJed

QIO

31.03.2019

31.03.2018

BRFT SToPTIF0Z odeemTo SANY Fwedd

7@5@@33 TROTEFIND

030D @;371%3 =003 mgob% nos

3eednned

TRINT ROFAD (WIS FRADH)

SRS ©08BYFOZ cdnerTe BANY Fwedd

AONY JeRT 28

(56,40,604)

(48.17,620)

03ReTD efﬁgmf 0T @omaﬁ%d@%os %zs@p mgébﬁ nos

5. Rohead aEwnem oo /3]

QIO

31.03.2019

31.03.2018

BRCT DBVRATD NV /(TH)-BRBMOOTAW

4,70,816

9,52,685

JTFT QTPROTD N /(IF)-030eRTD SANW

ST b NOE/(ST)

4,70,816

9,52,685

JITFTY MTERT TRNATD NOT/(IR)

4,70,816

9,52,685

JRFT BRIONY ME/TT DTPNRETD NOF/(IT)

6. 3% QO Ty WP ooy T TIFE TEIREY 1HTHIT BRI

QEONSd

31.03.2019

31.03.2018

BRET WOZTYTOZ BHBMOOING TAT &P

56,40,604

48,17,620

DRET @ossdg’gcg)oé 03RC%TD 83?3}71%‘3 méodazﬁ@

QRN ek A8

(56,40,604)

(48.17.620)

MOEXTT DBPNRTD NOE/(TH)

%{pé DWTFD TIONY TOTVSAT AVE SR /(R8T 0)

(56,40,604)

(48.17.620)
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7. oo w3y SFE TodhY) MShITRT g (TR.1TQ)
Aoy €53 31.03.2019 31.03.2018
wd oo B[ - -
& dag 3,52,168 3,68,915
cdpezd BANY Het JoesT NYd - -
BRVBRRIRT PO, /(&BP) - -
VEFE [P, /(&BR) - -
TFE IRETY HDERRT DFY QTR 19F/(IK) 4,70.816 (9.52,685)
P DT IFB TN MEFRT FYNRW 8,22,984 (5.83.770)

3 28 : ReSne Seoewd

31.03.201% 31.03.2018¢
QFTRR dfeoR SRR | dedneon SRERY
ge. ge.
VPTB BOTIHY a‘éradéé ReRdNnsd 2,56,22,81,770 193,02,85,001
BP&%E B0TE BOWORAT FHe[RW 67,26,10,913 48,97,92,280
3Ted FHeIned 22,43,65,405. 7,82,36,707
283 3.45,92,58.088 | 249.83.13.988

W38 29 : RNCo TR Tod

BOTAO BRYS DVOBY =0&%d wéwﬂ@ SH0T RS [T STRBVTDWIT  QLRANTT, TSR,
OPYRTOTT TR&E 0ZeRT AeTNH, WRVPHT FPFONF, BPTIT FOTIRY ABRAW Tone BRLE
30T O30 RehNed. woTING I AeBNY ZOHRT WY BTLRWOMEWS BRBNAD 3TY RYINRD
TN BO30T IID wédﬁ@— QRNI, TOMBR QPANTT), MNEFRNT D) FTH  SPEOONT.
QEIONEOD TITOONT), FOIPOTLY WRIOBLRT @%& QeSO T BN ﬁas%m :oe@wmgmwoé
FOTJAOR 6§ QeST LOTOTVEDTTONTS.
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() |PRT dFeNeod [2SNE::

(5007 Iew Hoanvry WRTRY ARRRN) (Br.o8ReD)
i ankd PR | AR ,)omraso Rk a’ogzé‘aa FNeF0TRTY )
3ozpm A ke Aeslnvo 850 A

DIV SONDIEY 25,516.00 163.00 25,623.00 2,244.00 0.00 53,546.00

(18,452.74) (337.07) | (1930285) |  (782.37) 0.00 | (38.875.03)

TSONO : 52;371%30 24,185.65 130.72 24,939.87 1,927.76 1,046.27 52,230.28

(17,132.97) (101.24) | (18.828.49) |  (62387) (795.70) | (37.482.27)

RNecd FOZ03 1,330.35 3228 683.13 31624 | (1,046.27) 1,315.72

(> G (1319.77) (235.83) (47436) | (158.50) |  (~795.70) 1392.76

WG W) 93T Smeod 858.38 858.38

(661.44) (661.44)

pitad (194.27) (194.27)

(-206.67) | (~206.67)

301 S0YR AFE o 1,330.35 32.28 683.13 316.24 (382.16) 1,979.84

(1319.77) (235.83) (47436) | (158.50) |  (-340.93) 1847.53

LoD BRWHO BAOTET (138.84) (138.84)

) SRR, WLy (6.76) (6.76)

33003 30RTeN %00 51.05 51.05

IR, ARBRE Bedy=0/ (13.55) (13.55)
BRRD NTRERIMND

W dor (745.00) (745.00)

(667.00) (667.00)

Swoneryy or 33.25 33.25

(2.00) (2.00)

egged3 yRo3 (219.78) (219.78)

0.00 0.00

gied3 SRgRodE #eds 3oR 45.18) 45.18)

0.00 0.00

3o =YY wegRo3s To3TH 1,330.35 32.28 683.13 31624 | (1.446.65) 915.35

DR g (1319.77) (235.83) (47436) | (158.50) | (-1003.14) 1185.32

938 =RWSNH

QTONEC SAND 46,299.50 46,299.50

(45.876.24) | (45.876.24)

QONCON JRBNAK 33,178.31 33,178.31

(33,83039) | (33.830.39)

V) Q30N JoIT AR BRWSN:
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NOTICE

TO ALL THE SHAREHOLDERS,

NOTICE is hereby given that the 42"Annual General Meeting of the Members of the Company will be
held on Monday, the 30%-day of September, 2019 at 2.30 PM at Room No.422, 4"Floor, Vikasa Soudha,
Bengaluru - 560001, to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

01 To receive, consider and adopt the audited financial statements of the Company for the financial year
ended 31tMarch, 2019 and the Reports of the Auditors and Directors together with the comments received
from the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under Section 143(6) (b) of the Companies Act, 2013.

02 To declare a dividend on Equity Shares.

03 To authorize the Board of Directors to fix the remuneration to the Statutory Auditors M/s. Dagliya & Co.,
Chartered Accountants, Bengaluru who have been appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company for the
financial year 2019-20 by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, New Delhi.

By order of the Board

Sd/-
Place : Bengaluru (CS SHASHIDHARA G.S.)
Dated: 27.09.2019 COMPANY SECRETARY IN PRACTICE

NOTE:

a) A Member entitled to attend and vote at the Meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote instead
of himself and the proxy need not be a Member of the Company.

b) The Company being a Government Company, the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, New Delhi has
appointed M/s. Dagliya & Co., Chartered Accountants, Bengaluru as Statutory Auditors of the Company for
the financial year 2019-20 pursuant to the provisions of sub-section (5) of Section 139 of the Companies
Act, 2013, vide letter dated 16.08.2019.




Dr. E.V. Ramana Reddy, IAS
Additional Chief Secretary to Govt.
Dept. of ITTBT& S & T
Chairman, KEONICS
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DIRECTORS REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2018-19

The Board of Directors of M/s. Karnataka State Electronics Development Corporation Limited have great
pleasure in presenting their 42" Annual Report along with the Audited Financial Statements for the financial year

ended 31t March, 2019.

01. FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE — STATE OF AFFAIRS OF THE COMPANY

The salient features of the Annual Accounts in respect of performance of the Company for the financial year
2018-19 in comparison to the corresponding previous year are as follows:-

(Rupees in Crores)

PARTICULARS CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR
31.03.2019 31.03.2018
Revenue from operations 535.45 388.75
Other Income 8.58 6.61
Total Revenue 544.03 395.36
Direct Expenses 503.03 358.63
Employee Benefit Expenses 13.26 11.99
Administrative Expenses 6.00 4.21
Profit before financial charges &depreciation 21.74 20.54
Percentage of Profit to total revenue 4.00% 5.20%
Financial Cost Nil Nil
Depreciation & Amortization Expenses 1.94 2.07
Profit before Tax (PBT) 19.80 18.48
Prior period items (1.39) (0.07)
Provision for taxes 6.61 6.55
Profit after Tax (PAT) 11.80 11.85
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The sales performance of the Company’s various Divisions is presented below:

(Rs. in Crores)

DIVISION CURRENTYEAR | PREVIOUS YEAR
31.03.2019 31.03.2018
1. Infrastructure Development 1.63 3.37
2. IT Services 255.16 184.53
3. IT Education Services 22.43 7.82
4. Manpower Supply Services 256.23 193.03
5. Corporate (Other Income) 8.58 6.61
TOTAL 544.03 395.36

02. REVENUES & PROFITS

The revenues earned by the Company from sales and service for the financial year 2018-19 is Rs.535.45
Crores, when compared to Rs. 388.75 Crores in the corresponding previous year. There has been a substantial
growth of 37.75% in the sales and service turnover of the Company for the financial year 2018-19. The percentage

of profit before tax to total turnover is 3.38% and to sales and service turnover is 3.44%.

The Reserves and surplus of the Company as on 31.03.2019 is Rs.102.14 Crores and the Net-worth is

Rs.129.62 Crores. The earnings per share (basic) for the year is Rs.42.96.

03. REVIEW OF BUSINESS OPERATIONS AND FUTURE PROSPECTS

.  INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT:

(a) Electronics City:

Company has set up Electronics City on a sprawling 332 acres of land on Hosur Road, Bengaluru.

This Electronics City is today a major hub for Information Technology activities.

(b) IT Park Shivamogga and Kalaburagi :

As per the directions of Government of Karnataka following IT Parks have been established by the Company.

SLNO | PARTICULARS BUILT UP AREA AMOUNT INVESTED
1 IT Park, Shivamogga 73,666 sq feet Rs.16.10 crores
2 IT Park, Kalaburagi 53,000 sq feet Rs. 9.19 crores

(c) IT SEZ, Shivamogga

The Company has established an IT SEZ at Nidige-Machenahalli, Industrial Area, Shivamogga in an area
of 25 acres. The Government of India has accorded KEONICS, the status of Co- Developer for this SEZ

project.
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(d) IT Park, Hubballi :

With a view to encourage growth of Information Technology and Information Technology enabled services
industries in Northern part of Karnataka, Information Technology Park at Hubballi with a total built up area
of 2.70 lakh sq.ft. was established in HDMC complex out of the grants received from Government of
Karnataka. The Company is maintaining the IT Park, Hubballi, out of the maintenance grant received from
Government of Karnataka. Software Technology Parks of India have provided high speed connectivity at
Information Technology Park, Hubballi.

Il. IT SERVICES:

Company has undertaken many projects of providing and programming of IT software and e-governance projects
to various Government Departments of Government of Karnataka and other States. Company is also marketing
computer hardware, software, e-tendering services, various electronic and IT equipments, LED lights, solar LED
street lights, surveillance cameras, etc., to various Government Departments / organizations of Government of
Karnataka and other States.

Besides, the Company continues to provide consultancy on project implementation to various Government
Departments in the areas of Networking, Web Creation, Software Development and Computerization Plans.

lll. IT EDUCATION SERVICES:

IT Education Division is playing a vital role in taking the benefits of IT to rural Karnataka. Company has a network
of around 192 franchisee training centers throughout Karnataka. One of the major activities of the Company is
IT Education. The Company is conducting training programmes starting from Basic, Job Oriented, Professional
and High end training courses across the State from Hobli, Taluka and District level. Company has also taken up
computer training programme to Government employees. Company has also taken up the assignment of
conducting computer literacy online test to the Government employees. Most of the Government Sponsored
Computer Training programmes of Govt. of Karnataka, are implemented by the Company. The Company is
deploying these trained candidates to the various Government departments/ organizations through Manpower
Supply Services Division.

IV. MANPOWER SUPPLY SERVICES:

Apart from pursuing the Main activities of the Company, the Company has been engaged in the business of
providing skilled Manpower services to various Government Departments, Boards and Corporations through its
Business Partners and Associates. The experience gained in this new area of activity is quite encouraging as
the contribution from the HR Division of the Company has been quite substantial to the total turnover of the
Company and the trend indicates long sustainability and growth. As on date the Company has provided employment
opportunity to as many as 9,385 people by deploying them to various Government Departments/Boards and
Corporations.

V. EXECUTION OF PROJECTS OF GOVERNMENT OF KARNATAKA GRANTS

Company has executed various training programs for SC and ST candidates under SCSP and TSP grants of
Government of Karnataka.

VI. CONSTRUCTION OF COMPANY'S OWN BUILDINGS:

1. Construction of Keonics warehouse for Incubation and Nurturing Growth of startups (K-Wings) building at
HSR Layout, Bengaluru at a total project cost of Rs.33.71 Crore.

2. Construction of Keonics Office building at Peenya Ist Stage, Bengaluru at a total project cost of
Rs.4.00 Crore.

04 DIVIDEND

Your Board of Directors are pleased to recommend for declaration of dividend at 4% on the paid-up equity share
capital of a face value of Rs. 100/- per share for the financial year ended 31 March, 2019.

5
Lo |
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05 TRANSFER TO RESERVES
Your Directors do not propose to carry any amount to reserves of the Company during the year under report.
06 PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS MADE WITH RELATED PARTIES

There were no related party transactions required to be disclosed pursuant to the provisions of Section 188 of
the Companies Act, 2013 during the year under report.

07 MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION BETWEEN
THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR AND DATE OF REPORT

There are no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company between the
end of the financial year 2018-19 and to the date of this report:

The Company has allotted 1,60,000 equity shares of Rs.100/- each amounting to Rs.1,60,00,000/- on 26.06.2019.
08 EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

In accordance with Section 134(3)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013, an extract of the Annual Return in form MGT-
9 is appended as ANNEXURE — [ to this report.

09 NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF BOARD

The Board of Directors duly met ONE time on 19.09.2018 during the financial year 2018-19. The requirement of
holding at least four Board Meetings in each Calendar Year with a maximum interval of 120 days between two
consecutive Board Meetings pursuant to the provisions of section 173 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
Clause - 2 of SS -1 — Secretarial Standard on Meetings of the Board of Directors issued under section 118(10)
of the Companies Act, 2013 has not been complied with:

SI. No. Name of the Director Number of Board Meetings attended
during the financial year 2018-19
01 Sri. K. J. George 1
02 Sri. Kapil Mohan, 1AS 1
03 Smt. R. Vinoth Priya, IAS 1
04 Sri. O. Palaiah, IFS 1
05 Sri. Gaurav Gupta, IAS 0
06 Smt. B. Sindhu, IAS 0
07 Prof. S. Sadagopan 0
08 Sri. Shailendra Kumar Tyagi 0
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10 EXPLANATIONS OR COMMENTS BY THE BOARD ON EVERY QUALIFICATION, RESERVATION
OR ADVERSE REMARK OR DISCLAIMER MADE:
a) BY THE AUDITOR IN HIS REPORT:

Sl. | Qualification/Reservation/Adverse Explanations or Comments by the

No.| Remark/Disclaimer by Auditor Management

[ The Company has not complied with the The Company has taken action to obtain
instructions given under Section 22 of the Micro, certificate of registration from vendors /
Small and Medium Enterprises Development suppliers certifying that they fall under Micro,
(MSMED) Act, 2006 to disclose the required Small and Medium Enterprises Development
information relating to Micro and Small Enterprises | Act 2006. Few vendors / suppliers, who are
in the financial statements as the company has not | registered under MSME have responded
ascertained from the suppliers and service during 2019-20, the disclosure of the same
providers as to their status as Micro or Small shall be made in the subsequent financial
enterprise under the MSMED Act, 2006 and not years.
disclosed the information as required under
Schedule Il to the Act. However non-disclosure
does not have any impact on the results of the
Company. (Refer Note 34 to the Financial Statements)

i | The Company has not obtained confirmation of Necessary action will be taken to obtain
balances of Trade and other Receivables, Trade confirmation of balances of Trade and other
and other payables, Loans & Advances and Receivables, Trade and other Payables,
Deposits. Certain long outstanding balances exist | Loans and Advances and Deposits.
in these accounts, which are under review and
reconciliation. Pending completion of such review
and reconciliation, adjustments, if any, required
are not made in the accounts, as explained to us.

In view of the above, we are unable to quantify the
consequential impact on the financial statements.

i | Attention is invited to Deposits disclosed in Note 7 | The Company has received few amounts
which includes Rs. 3,79,43,556/- shown as EMD | through electronic fund transfers being
Received from vendors through- GOK for which credited to its bank accounts from various
details of the parties and nature of credits are not | departments / vendors. The Company is
available since these are electronic fund transfers. | initiating all efforts to ascertain the details of
In the absence of particulars, we are unable to these credits and will be accounted suitably.
ascertain the correctness of such amount being
included under EMDs received.

iv. | The company has not created any provision The grant received from Government of

towards Goods & Service Tax liability on the grants
received from Government of Karnataka for
maintenance of industrial parks. The quantum of
such liability is not readily ascertainable. In view of
the above, we are unable to quantify the
consequential impact on the financial statements

Karnataka is purely for maintenance of IT Park
buildings at Hubballi, Shivamogga and
Kalburgi. The grant received is actually spent
for maintenance of IT Parks. Since the grant
received is for maintenance purpose no
provision has been made towards GST in the
books of accounts.
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v | The company has received Rs 81,51,169/- as The advance received from various
advance from customers towards supply of government departments towards supply of
services as on 31.03.2019. In terms of Section 12 | services and goods are through online
of the CGST Act, 2017 the Company was required | remittances. The advance received for
to pay GST amounting to Rs 12,43,398/-on receipt | services were identified subsequently. In the
of advance amount in respect of services and the | absence of the details of nature of advance,
same is eligible for set off against output liability. the Company could not make any provision
Non accounting of the above has resulted in for GST on such advances in the books of
understatement both current liabilities and current | accounts. However, while providing services
assets by Rs 12,43,398/-. and on raising the tax invoice the applicable
rate of GST is being paid to the concerned
authorities.
vi | The Company had received order from The Company had accounted the bills

Government of Karnataka to provide Wi-Fi services
to 2500 Grama Panchayats. Pursuant to the above
order, a grant of Rs.10.10 crores was received
from GOK for Wi-Fi Services to 500 Grama
Panchayats. The company had entered into an
agreement with BSNL and issued a work order

for 500 hotspots with 4 mbps backhaul and

3 access points at the rate of Rs. 2,50,000 plus
applicable taxes which works out to Rs.14.75 crores.
BSNL has executed the contract and raised bills
to the extent of Rs. 14.75 crores . Further, in terms
of the contract with BSNL the company was also
eligible for 90% of commission on sale vouchers
revenue.

Against the above claim for supply and
commissioning of Wi-Fi hotspots, the Company
has paid Rs. 10.10 crores to BSNL by charging to
grant account. No accounting entry has been
made for the balance of Rs. 4.65 crores. We are
explained that due to negotiations with BSNL on
price variation and other related matters their claim
is not recognized in the books of accounts. This
has resulted in understatement of Trade payables
and profit for the year by similar amount. The
Company has also not accounted for the sale
voucher revenue in terms of the agreement and
the ongoing negotiations with BSNL. In the
absence of sufficient details of such sale voucher
revenue and having regard to the disputes with
BSNL, consequential impact on the profit for the
year is not ascertainable.

received from BSNL to the extent of grant
received from Government of Karnataka.
The Company is currently negotiating with
BSNL as per the terms of contract. Based on
the negotiation the issue shall be settled.
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vii | Prior period adjustments (Note 25 to Profit & Loss | Due to error of omission, the interest received
Statement) includes amount of Rs.1,28,15,666 was not adjusted to accrued interest of earlier
representing the adjustment of opening balances | years being rectified in the books of accounts.
lying in “Interest accrued but not due” account for
the years 2006-07 to 2016-17 for which no
supporting documents are available.

viii | The company has declared dividend for the year Due to certain administrative reasons the
2017-18 in its AGM held on 27.11.2018. However | Company could not deposit the dividend
the company has not paid dividend within 30 days | amount with Government of Karnataka within
from the date of declaration and the unpaid/ 30 days from the date of declaration and the
unclaimed dividend of Rs. 2,19,77,600/- is also same has been shown under unpaid dividend
not deposited in a special account to be called the | account in the books of accounts. The said
“unpaid dividend account” within 7 days after amount is paid on 19.09.2019. However, the
expiry of 30th day as required under Sec. 124(1) statutory requirement is noted for future
of the Act . compliance.

ix | EMD received at the E-portal in respect of online | The observation is noted for future
tenders are not transferred to the company in compliance.
respect of certain successful tenders and such
amount receivable from the portal is neither
ascertainable nor accounted in the Company’s books.

x | Without qualifying our opinion, we draw the An application is made by the Company to
attention that the Income Tax Department has refund the wrong deductions made by the
deducted Rs 28.23 lakhs for the AY 2006-07 and | Income Tax Department. The Company is
Rs 122.86 lakhs for the AY 2008-09 while refunding | confident of receiving the incorrect demand
the amount for the Assessment Year 2014-15. adjustments made by the Income Tax
The Company has not made any adjustments in Department for the Assessment Year 2014-15.
the books of accounts as the management is
confident of receiving these deducted amounts

xi | According to the information and explanations The audit observations made on the internal

given to us and based on our audit, the following

material weaknesses have been identified

as at 31t March,2019:

a) The company operating its business through
office orders and directions from board, has
not documented the key manuals of Standard
Operating Procedures (SOPs) and the
components of internal financial controls for
functional activities as required in the
Guidance Note.

controls are noted for the future compliances.
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b) No policy towards design of physical controls
for physical verification of the fixed assets,
which could potentially result in misstatement
of the fixed asset values in the books of account.

c) Inadequate design of monitoring of controls on
renewal of Rental and Manpower agreements
and renewal/issue of franchisee certificate,
which results in accounting of revenue based
on accounting policy without certainty of its
ultimate collection.

d) Failure of creation of utilization path as per the
policy while utilizing the grants for effective
control.

e) Inadequate design in the information system
to ascertain and record the transactions of the
relevant accounting period in a timely manner.

f) There is no adequate system to ensure
transfer of EMD received at the E-portal in
respect of online tenders to the company in
respect of successful tenders and to account
the same in the Company’s books.

b) THE COMPANY SECRETARY IN PRACTICE IN HER SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT:

Sl. | Qualification/Reservation/Adverse Remark/ Explanations or Comments by the Board
No.| Disclaimer by Secretarial Auditor

01 | Pursuant to the provisions of section 173(1) of the | The Company could not convene and hold

Companies Act, 2013 read with Clause 2.1 of
SS-1- Secretarial Standard on Meeting of the Board
of Directors, the Company shall convene and hold
at least four Board meetings during the year and
the intervening gap between two consecutive
Board meetings shall not be more than 120 days.
The Company had convened and held only

one (01) Board Meeting during the financial year
2018-19 and therefore the Company has not
complied with the provisions of section 173(1) of
the Companies Act, 2013 read with Clause 2.1 of
SS-1- Secretarial Standard on Meeting of the
Board of Directors.

four Board Meetings during the year under
report due to Election Code of Conduct for
Karnataka State Assembly and frequent
changes in the composition of the Board of
Directors of the Company.
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02

The Company should have appointed a Whole-time
Company Secretary pursuant to the provisions of
section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
Rule 8 of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules,
2014 as the paid-up share capital of the Company
exceeded Rs.10.00 Crores. As a consequence

of this, the Company could not file ACTIVE —Form
No.INC-22A pursuant to Rule 25A of the Companies
(Incorporation) Rules, 2014 with the Registrar of
Companies, Karnataka, Bengaluru.

The Board noted the observation for further
compliance.

03

| further report that the Board of Directors of the
Company is duly constituted. There were changes
in the composition of the Board of Directors during
the period under review in accordance with the
instructions of the Government of Karnataka and

| observed that the Company has not appointed
two Independent Directors pursuant to the
provisions of section 149 of the Companies Act,
2013 read with Rule 4 of the Companies
(Appointment and Qualification of Directors)
Rules, 2014, as the Company being a Public
Limited Company and the turnover of the Company
was more than Rs.100.00 Crores and therefore
the constitution of Audit Committee & CSR
Committee were not in accordance with the
provisions of section 177 and section 135 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with applicable rules.

The Government is yet to appoint
Independent Directors on the Board of the
Company and soon after the appointment,
action will be taken to re-constitute the Audit
Committee and CSR Committee with the
Independent Directors.

04

Adequate notice is given to all the Directors of the
Company to schedule the Board Meetings,
agenda and detailed notes on agenda were not
sent in the Meeting held during the financial year
2018-19 at least seven days in advance and a
system exists for seeking and obtaining further
information and clarifications on the agenda items
before the meeting and for meaningful participation
at the meeting.

The Board noted the observation for
further compliance.
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11 PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186 :
There were no loans, guarantees or investments made by the Company pursuant to the provisions of
Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 during the year under report.

12 CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION,
FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

A. Conservation of Energy:

a. Steps taken or impact on energy Conservation The Company being an Electronic Industry
does not consume much energy. In view of
this additional investments and proposal for
undertaking conservation measures are not
contemplated.

b. the steps taken by the Company for utilizing Nil

alternate sources of energy

c. the capital investment on energy conservation Nil

equipment
B. Technology Absorption:

a. The efforts made towards technology absorption There is no technology involved which requires
disclosure in the Board’s Report.

b. The benefits derived like product improvement, Nil

cost reduction, product development or import
substitution

c. Incase of imported technology imported during Nil

the last three years reckoned from the beginning
of the financial year
(a) the details of technology imported;
(b) the year of import;
(c) whether the technology been fully absorbed;
(d) if not fully absorbed, areas where absorption
has not taken place, and the reasons thereof
d. The expenditure incurred on Research and Nil
Development
C. Foreign Exchange earnings and outgo:

a. Foreign Exchange earned in terms of actual NIL
inflows during the year under report

b. Foreign Exchange outgo in terms of actual NIL
outflows during the year under report
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Following is the Directors’ Responsibility Statement pursuant to the provisions of sub-section (5) of section
134 of the Companies Act, 2013, referred to in clause (c) of sub-section (3) of the said section, in respect
of the financial statements of the Company:

In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been followed along
with proper explanation relating to material departures;

The Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the Company for that period;

The Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

The Directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis

The Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws
and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

DETAILS IN RESPECT OF FRAUDS REPORTED BY AUDITORS UNDER SUB-SECTION (12) OF
SECTION 143 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 OTHER THAN THOSE WHICH ARE REPORTABLE TO
THE CENTRAL GOVERNMENT

There are no frauds reported by Auditors under Sub-section (12) of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013.

DETAILS OF PENALTIES/PUNISHMENT/ COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION
OF THE COMPANY BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR AND THE DATE OF THE
DIRECTORS’ REPORT

There are no penalties / punishments / commitments affecting the financial position of the Company between
the end of the financial year and the date of Director’s report.

A STATEMENT INDICATING DEVELOPMENT AND IMPLEMENTATION OF A RISK MANAGEMENT
POLICY FOR THE COMPANY INCLUDING IDENTIFICATION THEREIN OF ELEMENTS OF RISK, IF
ANY, WHICH IN THE OPINION OF THE BOARD MAY THREATEN THE EXISTENCE OF THE COMPANY

The Company is yet to implement the risk management policy for the Company.

THE DETAILS ABOUT THE POLICY DEVELOPED AND IMPLEMENTED BY THE COMPANY ON
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY INITIATIVES TAKEN DURING THE YEAR UNDER REPORT

The details about the CSR initiatives taken during the year referred to in Section 135(4) of the Companies
Act, 2013, in the prescribed format is appended as ANNEXURE - Il to this report.
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RESIGNED DURING THE YEAR AND TILL THE DATE OF REPORTING

The following Changes in the composition of the Board of Directors have taken place as per the directions

of the Government of Karnataka:

Sl. | NAME OF THE DIRECTOR NOMINATION/
No. CEASATION WITH IN PLACE OF
EFFECT FROM

01 | Sri. O Palaiah, IFS, Managing Director 15.09.2018 | Sri. Rangegowda, IFS, Managing Director

02 | Sri. KJ George 11.07.2018

03 | Sri. Kapil Mohan, IAS 31.07.2018 | Smt. Renuka Chidambaram, IAS

04 | Mr. K. Nagaraj 27.08.2018 | Smt. Salma K Fahim

05 | Smt. Vinoth Priya Ramaiah, IAS 27.08.2018 | Mr. K. Nagaraj

06 | Sri. Pavan Kumar Malapati, IAS 25.10.2018 | Smt. Sindhu Bhargavarama,lAS

07 | Sri. R Girish, IAS 23.01.2019 | Smt. Vinoth Priya Ramaiah IAS

08 | Sri. Dasharathia Sudhakar 28.05.2018

09 | Sri. Thimmaiah Ramappa Suresh, IPS,| 16.07.2019 | Sri. O Palaiah, IFS,

Managing Director Managing Director

10 | Sri. B. Shivanna, MLA 08.01.2019 | Sri. K. J. George,
Hon’ble Minister of Large and Medium
Scale Industries, IT & BT, Science and
Technology, Government of Karnataka

- The Government of Karnataka has withdrawn the nomination of the below mentioned Directors as
nominee Directors on the Board of the Company with effect from 29.05.2018:

Sl. No. Name of Non-Official Directors Designation

01 Mr. S.C.Shashidhar Non-official Director

02 Mr. A.S.Manjunath Non-official Director

03 Mr. D.S. Raghu Non-official Director

04 Mr. K. Venkatasubbaraju Non-official Director

05 Mr. Basavanna Non-official Director

06 Mr. Avinash Babu.B.R. Non-official Director

07 Mr. M.A. Akbar Pasha Non-official Director

08 Mr. Bheemaraya Non-official Director

09 Mr. Ramanna Kallannavar Non-official Director

Except this there are no changes in the Directors of the Company during the year under report.

14 |

L 14 |
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19 COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

The following committees have been constituted by the Board.

- CSR Committee: The CSR Committee has been constituted by the Board pursuant to the provisions
of section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility
Policy) Rules, 2014, to formulate and recommend to the Board, a Corporate Social Responsibility
Policy which shall indicate the activities to be undertaken by the Company, to recommend the amount
of expenditure to be incurred on the said activities, monitor the Corporate Social Responsibility Policy
of the Company from time to time and to prepare a transparent monitoring mechanism for ensuring
implementation of the projects / programmes / activities proposed to be undertaken by the Company.

Following Directors are the members of the CSR Committee during the year under report:-

i)  Managing Director, KEONICS : Chairman of the Committee
i)  Nominee Director of Finance Department, Govt. of Karnataka : Member of the Committee
iy Director, Dept. of Information Technology & Bio Technolog & S&T : Member of the Committee

During the financial year under report, meeting of the CSR Committee was not held.

- Audit Committee: As required under the provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013, Audit
Committee has been constituted and the following Directors are the members of the Audit Committee:

1. Smt. R. Vinothpriya, IAS : Chairman

2. Sri. K.R. Rudrappa, : Member
In-charge Managing Director

The Audit Committee of the Company met on 17.09.2018 during the year under report.

20

21

22

THE NAMES OF COMPANIES WHICH HAVE BECOME OR CEASED TO BE ITS SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT
VENTURES OR ASSOCIATE COMPANIES DURING THE YEAR

Your Board of Directors report that during the year under report no bodies corporate have become or
ceased to be Subsidiary, Joint venture or Associate Company of the Company.

THE DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR
COURTS OR TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY’S
OPERATIONS IN FUTURE

There are no significant material orders passed by the courts/regulators or tribunals impacting the going
concern status and Company’s operations in future.

SUMMARY OF COMPLAINTS RECEIVED AND DISPOSED OFF DURING EACH CALENDAR YEAR AS
REQUIRED UNDER THE PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013 AND DISCLOSURE THAT THE COMPANY
HAS IN PLACE AN ANTI SEXUAL HARASSMENT POLICY IN THE LINE WITH THE REQUIREMENTS
OF THE ACT AND THAT AN INTERNAL COMPLAINTS COMMITTEE HAS BEEN SET UP FOR
REDRESSAL OF COMPLAINTS AND THAT ALL EMPLOYEES (PERMANENT, CONTRACTUAL,
TEMPORARY, TRAINEES) ARE COVERED UNDER THE POLICY

Your Board of Directors report that during the year under report Anti Sexual Harassment Policy in line with
the requirement of Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 is in place and has complied
with the constitution of Internal Complaints Committee under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and further the employees have been advised to address

their grievances under this Act to the Working Director of the Company for redressal.

15 |

15
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DETAILS OF THE ESTABLISHMENT OF VIGIL MECHANISM TO FACILITATE DIRECTORS AND
EMPLOYEES TO REPORT GENUINE CONCERNS TO THE COMPANY PURSUANT TO SUB-SECTION
(10) OF SECTION 177 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

The establishment of Vigil Mechanism to facilitate Directors and employees to report genuine
concerns to the Company pursuant to the provisions of Sub-section (10) of Section 177 of the Companies
Act, 2013 is not applicable to the Company.

DISCLOSURE ON FORMAL ANNUAL EVALUATION BY THE BOARD OF ITS OWN PERFORMANCE
AND ITS COMMITTEES AND INDIVIDUAL DIRECTORS

The disclosure on formal annual evaluation by the Board of its own performance and its
committees and individual Directors of the Company is not applicable to the Company during
the year under report.

DETAILS OF EQUITY SHARES WITH DIFFERENTIAL RIGHTS ISSUED BY THE COMPANY DURING
THE YEAR UNDER REPORT

Your Board of Directors report that during the year under report, the Company has not issued
equity shares with a differential right pursuant to the provisions of Section 43 of the Companies Act, 2013
read with Sub-rule (4) of Rule 4 of the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014.

DETAILS OF SWEAT EQUITY SHARES ISSUED BY THE COMPANY, DURING THE YEAR UNDER
REPORT

Your Board of Directors report that during the year under report, the Company has not issued sweat equity
shares pursuant to the provisions of Section 54 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Sub-rule (13) of Rule
8 of the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014.

DETAILS OF ESOP SCHEME

Your Board of Directors report that during the year under report, the Company has not offered
equity shares under ESOP scheme to the employees of the Company pursuant to the provisions of
Section 62(1)(b) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Sub-rule (9) of Rule 12 of the Companies (Share
Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014.

DETAILS OF EMPLOYEES AS REQUIRED UNDER RULE 5(2) OF THE COMPANIES
(APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014 READ WITH
THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL)
AMENDMENT RULES, 2016

There were no employees whose details are to be disclosed under Rule 5(2) of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 read with the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) amendment rules, 2016 during the
year under report.
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STAFF-MANAGEMENT RELATIONSHIP

The staff-management relationship during the year under review has been quite cordial and harmonious.
As on 31.03.2019 the Company is having a manpower of 87 employees. The breakup of Executives and

Non-executives are as follows:

SI.No | Particulars Current Year Previous Year
1. Executives 25 31
2. Non-Executives 62 67

COMPLIANCE OF APPLICABLE SECRETARIAL STANDARDS BY THE COMPANY

Your Directors report that during the year under report, the Company has not complied with the clauses of
Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India and approved by the
Government of India under sub-section (10) of section 118 of the Companies Act, 2013 and could convene

and hold only one Board meeting during the financial year 2018-19.

THE DETAILS RELATING TO DEPOSITS, COVERED UNDER CHAPTER V OF THE ACT
a) | Accepted during the year NIL
b) | Remained unpaid or unclaimed as at the end of the year NIL

c) | Whether there has been any default in repayment of
deposits or payment of interest thereon during the year and NIL

if so, number of such cases and the amount involved

i)  Atthe beginning of the year NIL
i) Maximum during the year NIL
i) Atthe end of the year NIL

THE DETAILS OF DEPOSITS WHICH ARE NOT IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE REQUIREMENTS OF
CHAPTER V OF THE ACT

There are no deposits accepted during the year which are not in compliance with the requirements of
chapter V of the Act.

THE DETAILS IN RESPECT OF ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH
REFERENCE TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Your Board of Directors report that during the year under report, the Company has adequate internal

financial controls with reference to the financial statements.
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STATUTORY AUDITORS

M/s. Dagliya & Co. Chartered Accountants, Bengaluru, have been appointed to audit the financial statements
of the Company for the financial year 2019-20 by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India in accordance
with the provisions of Sub-section (5) of the Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 vide letter dated
16.08.2019.

INTERNAL AUDITORS

In terms of the provisions of Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with rule 13 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014, the Company has appointed M/s. MKPS & Associates, Chartered Accountants,
Bengaluru as Internal Auditors of your Company for the financial year 2018-19.

MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS

Your Directors report that maintenance of cost records specified by the central Government pursuant to the
provisions of sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to the Company.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The Board wishes to thank the Government of Karnataka and Government of India for their valuable advice
and support to the Company. The Directors also wish to place on record their appreciation for efficiently
running the affairs of the Board & the Company by the Chairman & the Managing Director and valuable and
loyal services rendered by the Officers & staff of the Company during the year under review.

For and on behalf of the Board

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
(Dr. E. V. RAMANA REDDY, IAS) Managing Director Shailendra Kumar Tyagi
CHAIRMAN Director

(DIN: 02935216)

Dated the 27" day of September, 2019
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Annexure - |
FORM NO. MGT-9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
As on the Financial Year ended on 31.03.2019

[Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

I.  REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS :

01| CIN U75112KA1976SGC003055
02 | Registration Date 22.09.1976
03 | Name of the Company KARNATAKA STATE ELECTRONICS DEVELOPMENT

CORPORATION LIMITED

04 | Category/Sub-category of the Company | STATE GOVERNMENT COMPANY LIMITED BY SHARES

05 | Address of the Registered Office 2N FLOOR, TTMC ‘A’ BLOCK, BMTC, SHANTINAGAR,
& contact details K H ROAD, BENGALURU - 560 027

Email ID: keonicsaccounts@gmail.com

Phone number: 080-22272203

06 | Whether listed Company No

07 | Name, Address & contact details of NOT APPLICABLE
Registrar & Transfer Agent, if any

08 | Date of Annual General Meeting held 27.11.2018
during the financial year

ll.  PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY:

(All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the Company shall be stated)

Sl. | Name and Description of NIC Code of the % to Total Turnover
No. | Main Products / Services Product / Service of the Company
1 Sale of Electronic & Information Technology 6209 46.90%

related products & services

2 Manpower Supply Services - 47.09%

lll. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES:

Sl. | Name & Address CIN/GLN Holding/Subsidiary/ % of Applicable
No. | of the Company Associate Shares Held section




IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)

i)  Category-wise Share Holding:
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Category of Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the
beginning of the year

No. of Shares held at the
end of the year

Demat

Physical

Total

% of
Total
Shares

Demat

Physical

Total

% of
Total
Shares

% change
during
the year

A. Promoters

(1) Indian

a) Individual/HUF

b) Central Govt.

c) State Govt(s)

27,47,200

27,47,200

100%

27,47,200

27,47,200

100%

)
)
d) Bodies Corporates
e) Bank/FlI

f) Any other.........

SUB TOTAL:(A) (1)

27,47,200

27,47,200

100%

27,47,200

27,47,200

(2) Foreign

a) NRls - Individuals

b) Other Individuals

c) Bodies Corp.

d) Banks/FI

e) Any other...

SUB TOTAL (A) (2)

Total Shareholding of
Promoter (A) = (A)(1)+(A)(2)

27,47,200

27,47,200

100%

27,47,200

27,47,200

100%

B. PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING

(1) Institutions

a) Mutual Funds

b) Banks/Fl

C) Central Govt.

d) State Govt(s).

e) Venture Capital Fund

f) Insurance Companies

g) FlIS

h) Foreign Venture
Capital Funds

i) Others (specify)

SUB TOTAL (B)(1) :-
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(2) Non-Institutions

a) Bodies corporates -

i) Indian -

ii) Overseas -

b) Individuals -

i) Individual shareholders -
holding nominal share capital
up to Rs.1 lakh

ii) Individuals shareholders -
holding nominal share capital
in excess of Rs.1 lakh

c) Others (specify) -

SUB TOTAL (B)(2): -

Total Public Shareholding | -
(B)= (B)(1)+(B)(2)

C. Shares held by -
Custodian for
GDRs & ADRs

Grand Total (A+B+C) - |27,47,200|27,47,200 (100%| - |27,47,200 |27,47,200 | 100% -
ii) Shareholding of Promoter :
Shareholding at the Shareholding at the
beginning of the year end of the year
Sl No. of %of | %of Shares No. of %of | %ofShares |%change
No Shareholder’s Name Shares Total Pledged/ Shares Total Pledged/ | inshare-
Shares | encumbered Shares | encumbered | holding
of the to total of the to total during
Company | shares Company | shares | theyear

01. | In the name of

Governor of Karnataka 27,47,189| 99.99% — 27,47,189 | 99.99% — -
02. | Managing Director, KEONICS 4 0.01% — 4 0.01% — -
03. | Principal Secretary to 1 0.00% — 1 0.00% — -

Government Department

ofIT,BTandS&T
04. | Director, IT and BT 1 0.00% — 1 0.00% — -
05. | Deputy Secretary to 1 0.00% — 1 0.00% — -

Government, (Budget &

Resources), Finance Dept.
06. | Deputy Secretary to Govt. 1 0.00% — 1 0.00% — -

Dept. of IT,BTandS & T
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07. | Deputy Secretary to Govt. 1 0.00% 1 0.00% — -
(Welfare), Finance Dept.
08. | Under Secretary to 1 0.00% 1 0.00% — -
Government, Department of
IT,BTandS & T
09. | Under Secretary to 1 0.00% 1 0.00% — -
Government, Finance
Department, PWD Finance Cell
iii) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding :
Shareholding atthe | Cumulative Shareholding
beginning of the year during the year
Sl. Particulars No. of % of total No. of % of total
No. shares shares shares shares
of the of the
Company Company
01
At the beginning of the year - - - -
Date wise Increase / Decrease in Promoters - - - -
Shareholding during the year specifying the reasons
for increase /decrease (e.g. allotment / transfer /
bonus/ sweat equity etc):
At the end of the year - - - -
a) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders
of GDRs and ADRs) : Nil
Shareholding atthe | Cumulative Shareholding
beginning of the year during the year
Sl For Each of the Top 10 Shareholders No. of % of total No.of | % of total
No. shares shares shares shares
of the shares
Company Company
01
At the beginning of the year
Date wise Increase / Decrease in Promoters
Shareholding during the year specifying the reasons NOT APPLICABLE

for increase /decrease (e.g. allotment / transfer /
bonus/ sweat equity etc):

At the end of the year (or on the date of separation,
if separated during the year)
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iv) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel :

Shareholding atthe | Cumulative Shareholding
beginning of the year during the year
Sl Particulars No. of % of total No.of | % of total
No. shares shares shares shares
of the shares
Company Company
01 |Managing Director, KEONICS
At the beginning of the year 04 0.01% 04 0.01%
Date wise Increase / Decrease in Promoters Shareholding
during the year specifying the reasons for increase / — — — —
decrease (e.g. allotment / transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc.):
At the end of the year 04 0.01% 04 0.01%
V. INDEBTEDNESS: NIL

(Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment)

Secured Loans
excluding
deposits

Unsecured
Loans

Deposits

Total
Indebtedness

Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial year

i) Principal Amount

ii) Interest due but not paid

i) Interest accrued but not due

Total (i+ii+iii)

Change in Indebtedness during the financial year

* Addition

* Reduction

Net Change

Indebtedness at the end of the financial year

i) Principal Amount

ii) Interest due but not paid

iii) Interest accrued but not due

Total (i+ii+iii)
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VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL :
A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:
Sl. | Particulars of Name of MD/WTD/ Manager Total Amount
No. | Remuneration Sri Dasharathia | Sri Sri Range Sri O. Palaiah,
Sudhakar B. Shivanna | Gowda, IFS |IFS
Chairman Chairman Managing Managing
Director Director
01 | Gross salary Rs. 82,412/- Rs.4,15,764/- | Rs.9,90,884/- |Rs.12,66,589 Rs.27,55,649/-
(a) Salary as per — — — — —
provisions contained
in section 17(1) of the
Income-tax Act, 1961
(b) Value of perquisites | — — — — —
u/s 17(2) Income-tax
Act, 1961
(c) Profits in lieu of — — — — —
salary under section 17(3)
Income- tax Act, 1961
02 |Stock Option — — — — —
03 | Sweat Equity — — — — —
04 | Commission
- as % of profit — — — — —
- others, specify... — — — — —
05 | Others, please specify
(i) Leave Salary & - - Rs. 2,26,920/- |Rs.3,20,373/- Rs.5,47,293/-
Pension contribution
(ii) Reimbursement - - Rs.64,172/- Rs.18,000/- Rs.82,172/-
of expenses
Total (A) Rs.82,412/- Rs.4,15,764/- |Rs.12,81,976/- |Rs.16,04,962/- | Rs.33,85,114/-
Ceiling as per the Act
B. Remuneration to other directors: (in Rs.)
Sl Fee for Others Total
No. Name of Directors attending
Board Meetings
Sri Kapil Mohan, 1AS Rs.1,000/- - Rs.1,000/-
Smt. R. Vinothpriya, IAS Rs.1,000/- Rs.1,000/- Rs.2,000/-
Sri B. Shivanna Rs.3,000/- - Rs.3,000/-
Total Rs.5,000/- Rs.1,000/- Rs.6,000/-
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C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD/MANAGER/WTD : Nil

Sl

No.

Particulars of Remuneration

Key Managerial Personnel

CEO

CS | CFO | Total

01

Gross salary

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of the
Income-tax Act, 1961

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) Income-tax Act, 1961

02

Stock Option

03

Sweat Equity

04

Commission

- as % of profit

others, specify...

05

Others, please specify

Total

VIL.

PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES : NIL

Brief
Description

Details of
Penalty /

Section of the
Companies

Authority
[RD/NCLT/

Appeal made,
if any

Type

Act

Punishment/
Compounding
fees imposed

COURT]

(give details)

A. COMPANY

Penalty

Punishment

Compounding

B. DIRECTORS

Penalty

Punishment

Compounding

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT

Penalty

Punishment

Compounding

For and on behalf of the Board

Sd/-
(Dr. E. V. RAMANA REDDY, IAS)
CHAIRMAN
(DIN: 02935216)

Dated the 27" day of September, 2019

Sd/-
Managing Director

Sd/-
Shailendra Kumar Tyagi
Director
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ANNEXURE II

FORMAT FOR THE ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES TO BE INCLUDED IN THE
BOARD’S REPORT

A BRIEF OUTLINE OF THE COMPANY’S CSR POLICY, INCLUDING OVERVIEW OF PROJECTS OR
PROGRAMS PROPOSED TO BE UNDERTAKEN AND A REFERENCE TO THE WEB-LINK TO THE
CSR POLICY AND PROJECTS OR PROGRAMS

Objective:

KEONICS is committed to ensuring wellbeing of the communities in vicinity of our business operations
by taking up CSR activities which

Promote organizational integrity and ethical business practices through transparency in disclosure and
reporting procedures,

Leverages green technologies, processes and standards to produce goods and services that contribute to
social and environment sustainability,

Contribute to inclusive growth and equitable development in society through capacity building measures,
empowerment of the marginalized and underprivileged sections/communities.

iv. ~ Promote welfare of employees and labour (casual or contractual), by addressing their concerns of safety,
security, professional enrichment and healthy working conditions, whether mandated or otherwise, However,
expenditure on mandated activities cannot qualify for CSR’s financial components.

Thrust Areas :

1. Enhancing programmes of education and skilling leading to livelihood and employability of especially abled,
transgender and other weaker sections of society.

2. Building & Strengthening facilities for improving health, sanitation, nutrition inclusive of safe drinking water.

3. Building Social Capital & Infrastructure.

4. Nurturing Sustainability for inclusive growth.

5. Promoting technologies of high social impact.

Linkage between KEONICS Corporate Social Responsibility Thrust Areas and Schedule Vil of Companies
Act, 2013

Major Activities:

1.

Eradicating extreme hunger and poverty and malnutrition, promoting preventive health care and sanitation
and making available safe drinking water.

Promotion of education: including special education and employment enhancing vocation skills, especially
among children, women and differently abled and livelihood enhancement projects.

Promoting gender equality and empowering women, setting up homes and hostel for women and orphans,
setting up old age homes , day care centers and such other facilities for senior citizens and measures for
reducing inequalities faced by socially and economically backward groups.

[oa |
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Ensuring environmental sustainability, ecological balance, protection of flora and fauna, animal welfare,
agroforestry, conservation of natural resources, maintaining of quality of air, soil and water.

Contribution to PMO Relief Fund and any other fund setup by Central & State Government for socio economic
development and relief and welfare of SC & ST, other backward classes and women.

Contributions or funds provided to technology incubators located within academic institutions approved by
Central Government.

Rural development projects

THE COMPOSITION OF THE CSR COMMITTEE

Following Directors are the members of the CSR Committee:

i)  Managing Director, KEONICS : Chairman of the Committee
i)  Nominee Director of Finance Department, Govt. of Karnataka : Member of the Committee,

iy  Director, Dept. of Information Technology & Bio Technology & S&T : Member of the Committee,

3. AVERAGE NET PROFIT OF THE COMPANY FOR LAST THREE FINANCIAL YEARS
(Rs.in Lakhs)
YEAR NET PROFIT AVERAGE FOR Available amount for
3 YEARS CSR Project @ 2%
2015-16 965
2016-17 676
2017-18 1,840
TOTAL 3,481 1,160.33 23.21
4. PRESCRIBED CSR EXPENDITURE (TWO PERCENT OF THE AMOUNT AS IN ITEM (3) ABOVE):
Rs.23.21 Lakhs
5. DETAILS OF CSR SPENT DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR

(a) Total amount to be spent for the financial year : Rs. 23.21 Lakhs

(b) Total amount spent during the financial year : Rs. Nil
(including unspent CSR fund of earlier years)

(¢) Amount unspent, if any : Rs.23.21 Lakhs




(d)
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Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year detailed below:

(1)

(2) (3) (4) (3) (6) (7) (8)

S,
No.

CSR project Sectorin Projects or Amount | Amountspenton | Cumulative |  Amount
or activity which the programs outlay the projects or | expenditure spent:
identified projectis (1) Local Area (budget) programs up to the Direct or
covered or other project or Sub Heads: reporting through
(2) Specifythe | programs (1) Direct period | implementing
State and District wise Expenditure on agency
where projects or projects or
programs was programs
undertaken (2) Overheads:

NIL

IN CASE THE COMPANY HAS FAILED TO SPEND TWO PERCENT OF THE AVERAGE NET PROFIT
OF THE LAST THREE FINANCIAL YEARS OR ANY PART THEREOF, THE COMPANY SHALL PROVIDE
THE REASONS FOR NOT SPENDING THE AMOUNT IN ITS BOARD REPORT PURSUANT TO THE
PROVISIONS OF SECTON 135(5) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

The Company had to spend Rs. 23.21 Lakhs during the financial year 2018-19 towards CSR activities of
the Company, which is the eligible CSR amount. Itis reported that the Company could not identify the CSR
activities of the Company during the financial year 2018-19 due to the fact that the Company could not
convene and hold CSR Committee Meeting during the said financial year. The CSR Committee Meeting
could not be held due to frequent changes in the composition of the Board of Directors of the Company,
who are the Members of the CSR Committee.

A RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT OF THE CSR COMMITTEE THAT THE IMPLEMENTATION AND
MONITORING OF CSR POLICY, IS IN COMPLIANCE WITH CSR OBJECTIVES AND POLICY OF THE
COMPANY

We hereby declare that implementation and monitoring of the CSR policy are in compliance with CSR
objectives and policy of the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
(Dr. E. V. RAMANA REDDY, IAS) Managing Director Shailendra Kumar Tyagi
CHAIRMAN Director

(DIN: 02935216)

Dated the 27" day of September, 2019
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COMMENTS OF THE COMPROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA UNDER SEC-
TION 143(6)(b) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF
KARNATAKA STATE ELECTRONICS DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION LIMITED, BAN-
GALORE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019.

The preparation of financial statements of Karnataka State Electronics Development Corporation Limited,
Bangalore for the year ended 31 March 2019 in accordance with the financial reporting framework prescribed
under the Companies Act, 2013 (Act) is the responsibility of the management of the company. The statutory
auditor appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under section 139(5) of the Act is responsible
for expressing opinion on the financial statements under section 143 of the Act based on independent audit in
accordance with the standards on auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act. This is stated to have
been done by them vide their Audit Report dated 11 September 2019.

I, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have decided not to conduct the supplementary
audit of the financial statements of Karnataka State Electronics Development Corporation Limited, Banga-
lore for the year ended 31 March 2019 under section 143(6)(a) of the Act.

For and on behalf of the
Comptroller & Auditor General of India

Sd/-
(BIJIT KUMAR MUKHERJEE)
ACCOUNTANT GENERAL
PLACE: Bengaluru (ECONOMIC & REVENUE SECTOR AUDIT)
DATE : 23.09.2019 KARNATAKA, BENGALURU
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Dagliya & CO. 'L' Block, Unity Buildings, J.C. Road,
Chartered Accountants Bengaluru-560002 Phone: 080-2223 6783/4
E-mail : yaswantjain@gmail.com
guptamanchar@gmail.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF
KARNATAKA STATE ELECTRONICS DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION LIMITED
BENGALURU

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Qualified Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of KARNATAKA STATE ELECTRONICS
DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION LIMITED, BENGALURU (“the Company”), which comprise of the balance
sheet as at 31st March 2019, and the statement of Profit and Loss and the statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, except for the
effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our report, the aforesaid financial
statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and
give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of
affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2019, profit and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

(i) The company has not complied with the instructions given under Section 22 of the Micro, Small and
Medium Enterprises Development (MSMED) Act, 2006 to disclose the required information relating to
Micro and Small Enterprises in the financial statements as the company has not ascertained from the
suppliers and service providers as to their status as Micro or Small enterprise under the MSMED Act,
2006 and not disclosed the information as required under Schedule Il to the Act. However non-disclosure
does not have any impact on the results of the Company. (Refer Note 34 to the Financial Statements)

(i)  The Company has not obtained confirmation of balances of Trade and other Receivables, Trade and
other payables, Loans & Advances and Deposits. Certain long outstanding balances exist in these accounts,
which are under review and reconciliation. Pending completion of such review and reconciliation,
adjustments, if any, required are not made in the accounts, as explained to us. In view of the above, we
are unable to quantify the consequential impact on the financial statements.

(iii)  Attention is invited to Deposits disclosed in Note 7 which includes Rs. 3,79,43,556/- shown as EMD
Received from vendors through- GOK for which details of the parties and nature of credits are not available
since these are electronic fund transfers. In the absence of particulars, we are unable to ascertain the
correctness of such amount being included under EMDs received.
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The company has not created any provision towards Goods & Service Tax liability on the grants received
from Government of Karnataka for maintenance of industrial parks. The quantum of such liability is not
readily ascertainable. In view of the above, we are unable to quantify the consequential impact on the
financial statements.

The company has received Rs 81,51,169/- as advance from customers towards supply of services as on
31.03.2019. In terms of Section 12 of the CGST Act, 2017 the Company was required to pay GST amounting
to Rs 12,43,398/-on receipt of advance amount in respect of services and the same is eligible for set off
against output liability. Non accounting of the above has resulted in understatement both current liabilities
and current assets by Rs 12,43,398/-.

The Company had received order from Government of Karnataka to provide Wi-Fi services to 2500
Grama Panchayats. Pursuant to the above order, a grant of Rs. 10.10 crores was received from GOK for
Wi-Fi Services to 500 Grama Panchayats. The Company had entered into an agreement with BSNL and
issued a work order for 500 hotspots with 4 mbps backhaul and 3 access points at the rate of Rs. 2,50,000
plus applicable taxes which works out to Rs. 14.75 crores. BSNL has executed the contract and raised
bills to the extent of Rs. 14.75 crores . Further, in terms of the contract with BSNL the company was also
eligible for 90% of commission on sale vouchers revenue.

Against the above claim for supply and commissioning of Wi-Fi hotspots, the company has paid Rs. 10.10
crores to BSNL by charging to grant account., No accounting entry has been made for the balance of Rs.
4.65 crores. We are explained that due to negotiations with BSNL on price variation and other related
matters their claim is not recognized in the books of accounts. This has resulted in understatement of
Trade payables and profit for the year by similar amount. The Company has also not accounted for the
sale voucher revenue in terms of the agreement and the ongoing negotiations with BSNL. In the absence
of sufficient details of such sale voucher revenue and having regard to the disputes with BSNL, consequential
impact on the profit for the year is not ascertainable.

Prior period adjustments (Note 25 to Profit & Loss Statement) includes amount of Rs.1,28,15,666/-
representing the adjustment of opening balances lying in “Interest accrued but not due” account for the
years 2006-07 to 2016-17 for which no supporting documents are available.

The company has declared dividend for the year 2017-18 in its AGM held on 27.11.2018.However the
company has not paid dividend within 30 days from the date of declaration and the unpaid/unclaimed
dividend of Rs. 2,19,77,600/- is also not deposited in a special account to be called the “unpaid dividend
account” within 7 days after expiry of 30" day as required under Sec. 124(1) of the Act .

EMD received at the E-portal in respect of online tenders are not transferred to the company in respect of
certain successful tenders and such amount receivable from the portal is neither ascertainable nor
accounted in the company’s books.

Accounting Standards

1

The Company’s accounting policy of Revenue Recognition in respect of income from Training Services is
recognized and accounted on cash basis, which is contrary to the provisions of Section 128(1) of the Act,
and Accounting Standard 1 — Disclosure of Accounting Policies specified under the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014. The impact on the financial statements due to such deviation is not quantifiable.

31
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2 The Company has not allocated/ disclosed the Segment Assets and Segment liabilities on specific to the
segments on reasonable basis, which is contrary to Accounting Standard 17 — Segment Reporting, specified
under The Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. However non-disclosure does not have any impact on the
results of the Company.

We have conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013.0ur responsibilities under those Standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our qualified opinion on the Financial Statements.

Other Information

The Company‘s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Company's annual report being Directors Report along with Annexures, but does not
include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information; we are required to report
that fact. The Directors Report along with Annexures is not made available to us at the date of this auditor's
report. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Emphasis of Matter

Without qualifying our opinion, we draw the attention that the Income Tax Department has deducted Rs 28.23
lakhs for the AY 2006-07 and Rs 122.86 lakhs for the AY 2008-09 while refunding the amount for the Assessment
Year 2014-15. The Company has not made any adjustments in the books of accounts as the management is
confident of receiving these deducted amounts.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements:

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect
to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies(Accounts) Rules, 2014.This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
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adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a
true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements:

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SA’s, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

»  Obtain an understanding of internal controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act we are also responsible for expressing
our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial control system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor’'s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the Central Government
of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, and in terms of the information
and explanations sought by us and given by the company and the books and records examined by us in the
normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we state that:

i (a) The Company is maintaining Fixed Assets register with full particulars except particulars of
location in certain cases.

(b) The fixed assets have not been physically verified by the management during the year. Hence our
comment on effect on books of account due to material discrepancies, if any, does not arise.

(¢) On the basis of our examination of the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable
properties are held in the name of the Company.

ii.  Theinventory has been physically verified during the year by the management. In our opinion, the frequency
of verification is reasonable considering the size and nature of the company’s operations. Discrepancies
noticed on physical verification were not material, and have been properly dealt with in the books of
account.

iii. As explained to us, the company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms,
Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the
Companies Act, 2013, hence the question of grant of such loans being prejudicial to company's interest,
schedule of repayment of interest and principal, receipt of principal and interest on regular basis and steps
for recovery of overdue amount for more than 90 days as per clause (iii) of the Order does not arise.

iv.  As explained to us, the company has not granted any loans, nor made any investments nor given any
guarantees/ security to any party, hence the question of compliance with the provisions of Sections 185
and 186 of the Act as per clause (iv) of the Order does not arise.

V. In our opinion, the Company has not accepted any deposits from public; hence, the question of compliance
with the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any other
relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed thereunder as per clause (v) of the
Order does not arise.

vi. Inour opinion, the Company is not required to maintain cost records under sub-section (1) of Section 148
of the Act, for the activities carried on by the Company; hence the requirements of clause (vi) of the order
does not arise.

vii. (a) The company is generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund,
Employees State Insurance, Income tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise, Goods & Service Tax,
Cess and other statutory dues with the appropriate authorities to the extent applicable to it.

| 34 |
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(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the records verified
by us, excepting following dues, we state that no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident
Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of
Excise, Goods & Service Tax, Cess and other statutory dues which have remained outstanding as at
31st March 2019 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable:

Name of the Statute Nature Amount Period to which Due Date of Remarks,
of Dues (Rs) the amount relates Date Payment if any

Gujarat VAT VAT 4,00,782 April-dune 20th of subsequent | Not Paid Nil

Act, 2003 2017 months

Tripura VAT

Act, 2004 VAT 2,23,517 June 2017 20.07.2017 Not Paid Nil

Property Tax Act Property | 20,41,017 2006-07 to June 2018 Not Paid Nil

Tax 2018-19

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of Income tax or Sales Tax or
Service Tax or Duty of Customs or Duty of Excise or Value Added Tax which have not been deposited on
account of any dispute except as stated below:

Period Service Tax Penalty Amount Current Status

Demand-Rs. Rs. Deposited-Rs.
October 2008 to | 2,10,75,649 | 2,10,96,649 15,80,674 | Pending with Hon’ble Customs,
March 2013 (Deposited | Excise and Service Tax Appellate Tribunal

on 28-4-17)

Period Service Tax Current Status

Demand-Rs.
April 2013 to 12.39 Lakhs 92,944/- | Pending with Commissioner of
March 2014 (Deposited on 09.07.2019) | Central Tax (Appeals)
April 2014 to 23.13 Lakhs 1,73,539/- | Pending with Commissioner of
March 2015 (Deposited on 09.07.2019) | Central Tax (Appeals)
April 2015 to 4.06 Lakhs 30,487/- | Pending with Commissioner of
Sep 2015 (Deposited on 09.07.2019) | Central Tax (Appeals)
Oct 2015 to 71.91 Lakhs 5,39,370/- | Pending with Commissioner of
June 2017 (Deposited on 09.07.2019) | Central Tax (Appeals)

viii.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has neither

borrowed any loans from banks,Financial Institutions, Government nor issued any debentures and
consequently the question of default in repayment does not arise.

ix. No money was raised by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) and
the company has not taken any term loans during the year. Hence the question of application of moneys
raised by way of initial public offer, further public offer and term loans for the purpose for which they were
raised does not arise.
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To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by
the company or on the company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the year.

In our opinion, provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act relating to managerial remuneration
are not applicable to the company, hence the provisions of clause (xi) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company

The company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the provisions of clause (xii) of the Order are not applicable
to the company.

As explained to us, the company has not entered into any transactions with related parties as defined in
the Act, hence the requirement of compliance to provisions of Sections 177 and 188 of the Act and the
disclosure of such transactions in the Financial Statements etc., as required by applicable Accounting
Standards as per clause (xiii) of the Order does not arise.

The company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly
convertible debentures during the year, hence the requirement of compliance to provisions of Section 42
of the Act and utilization of amounts so raised for the purpose for which the funds were raised as per
clause (xiv) of the Order does not arise.

In our opinion, the company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons
connected with them; hence the requirement of compliance to provisions of Section 192 of the Companies
Act, 2013 as per clause (xv) of the Order does not arise.

In our opinion, the company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934, hence the requirements of clause (xvi) of the Order does not arise.

As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

Except for the effects of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph above, in our
opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears
from our examination of those books;

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement referred to in this
report are in agreement with the books of account;

Except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph above, in our
opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under Section
133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014;

The company being a Government Company and in terms of Notification reference No.G.S.R 463(E)
dated 05th June, 2015 issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs for Government Companies, the provisions
of Section 164(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 regarding disqualifications of directors is not applicable.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements of
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in “Annexure
A”and
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vii. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations, if any, on its financial position in its financial
statements — Refer Note No. 38 of Notes Forming Part of Accounts to the financial statements;

i.  The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any
material foreseeable losses;

ii.  There were no dues required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the
Company.

iv.  The disclosure requirement as envisaged in Notification G.S.R 308(E) dated 30th March 2017 is not
applicable to the Company for the year.

2.  Asrequired by Section 143(5) of the Act, we give in “Annexure-B”, a statement on the matters specified by
the Comptroller and Auditor- General of India for the company.

For Dagliya & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Regn.No.: 000671 S
Sd/-
(P. Manohara Gupta)
Place: Bengaluru Partner
Date: 11.09.2019 Membership No.: 016444

UDIN: 19016444AAAAGR4860
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ANNEXURE-A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF KARNATAKA STATE ELECTRONICS DEVELOPMENT
CORPORATION LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements of Karnataka State
Electronics Development Corporation Limited (“the Company”) as of 31stMarch, 2019 in conjunction with our
audit of the financial Statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based
on the internal control with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively
for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (“the Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with the ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system with reference to financial statements.

38
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

A company’s internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. Acompany’s internal financial
control with reference to financial statements includes those policies and procedures that-

1)  Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions
and dispositions of the assets of the company;

2) Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures
of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the
company; and

3) Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with
reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree
of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Qualified Opinion

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our audit, the following material
weaknesses have been identified as at 315 March, 2019:

a) The company operating its business through office orders and directions from board, has not documented
the key manuals of Standard Operating Procedures (SOPs) and the components of internal financial controls
for functional activities as required in the Guidance Note.

b) No policy towards design of physical controls for physical verification of the fixed assets, which could
potentially result in misstatement of the fixed asset values in the books of account.

¢) Inadequate design of monitoring of controls on renewal of Rental and Manpower agreements and renewal/
issue of franchisee certificate, which results in accounting of revenue based on accounting policy without
certainty of its ultimate collection.

d) Failure of creation of utilization path as per the policy while utilizing the grants for effective control.

e) Inadequate design in the information system to ascertain and record the transactions of the relevant
accounting period in a timely manner.

f)  There is no adequate system to ensure transfer of EMD received at the E-portal in respect of online
tenders to the company in respect of successful tenders and to account the same in the company’s books.

39
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A ‘material weakness’ is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal financial control with reference
to financial statements, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the company’s
annual financial statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely basis.

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the material weaknesses described above on the achievement
of the objectives of the control criteria, the Company has maintained ,in all material respects, adequate internal
financial controls system with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements were operating effectively as of 31t March, 2019,based on the internal financial control
with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note.

We have considered the material weaknesses identified and reported above in determining the nature, timing,
and extent of audit tests applied in our audit of the March 31, 2019 financial statements of the Company, and
these material weaknesses do not affect our opinion on the financial statements of the Company except in
respect of clause (f) of qualified opinion above and we have issued qualified opinion on the financial statements
in respect of the said matter.

For Dagliya & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Regn.No.: 000671 S

Sd/-
(P. Manohara Gupta)
Place: Bengaluru Partner
Date: 11.09.2019 Membership No.: 016444

UDIN: 19016444AAAAGR4860
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ANNEXURE-B TO THE AUDIT REPORT ON THE ACCOUNTS OF KARNATAKA STATE
ELECTRONICS DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31.03.2019 REFERRED TO IN PARAGRAPH (2) OF REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND
REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS OF OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE

Directions indicating the areas to be examined by the Statutory Auditors during the course of audit of annual
accounts of Karnataka State Electronics Development Corporation Limited for the year 2018-19 issued by the
Comptroller & Auditor General of India under Section 143(5) of the Companies Act, 2013.

Based on our audit procedures and according to the information and explanations given to us we report as
under:

I. DIRECTIONS
Sl. No. Directions Replies
1 Whether the company has system in place to All the accounting transactions are routed
process all the accounting transactions through | through IT systems using ERP based tally
IT Systems? If yes, the implications of software

processing of accounting transactions outside
IT system on the integrity of the accounts
along with the financial implications,

if any, may be stated.

2 Whether there is any restructuring of an The Company has not written off any book-debts
existing loan or cases of waiver/write off to during the year.

debts/loans/interest etc. made by a lender

to the company due to the company’s inability
to repay the loan? If yes, the financial impact
may be stated.

3 Whether funds received/ receivable for specific Grants received from Karnataka government are
schemes from the Central/State agencies were spent as per the terms and conditions of the
properly accounted for/utilized as per its terms Government order.

and conditions? List the cases of deviation.
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Il. ADDITIONAL COMPANY SPECIFIC DIRECTIONS

I. No. Additional Company Specific Direction Replies
(a) | Whether the Company has taken adequate As informed to us, the Company has taken
measures to prevent encroachment of idle land | adequate measures to prevent encroachment of
owned by it. Whether any land of the Company idle land owned by the company and there is no
is encroached, under litigation not put to use encroachment of company’s land.
or declared surplus? Details may be provided. Details of Land allotted at Electronic City,
Bengaluru under litigation:
1. 1.06 acres of Land allotted to ANCO
Communication Limited.
2. 0.25 acres of Land allotted to Kumon
Entertainments and Hospitalities Private Limited
3. 0.55 acres of land allotted to Infosys
Technologies Ltd. (Road portion)
4. 2.00 acres of Land allotted to InfoTech
Enterprises Limited. (Cyient Limited)
5. 1.00 acre of Land allotted to IR Multi Media
Solutions Private Limited.
Details of Land owned by the Company not put to
use:
1. 3.25 acres of Land at Mangaluru
2. 3.50 acres of Land at Hebbal Industrial Estate,
Mysuru
3. 1.72 acres of Land at Suryanagar, Bengaluru
4. 27 acres of SEZ Land at Nidige village,
Shivamogga.
As informed to us the company does not have
surplus land.
b) Examine and state the system of allotment of As informed by the management, presently no

industrial plots/ sheds including recovery of
installments from the allottees. What is the
system of imposing penalty due to delay in
setting up of business or starting business other
than the one for which the allotment was made?

land is available for allotment at Electronic

City, Bengaluru. Small portion of marginal land
available for allotment are allotted through open
public auction. In respect of the land already
allotted to Entrepreneurs, 99% of the cost of the
land has already been collected at the time of
allotment and 1% of the balance amount is
collected at the time of executing the absolute
sale deed.
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Periodical notices are issued to the

land allottees for delay in implementation of the
project. In case of abnormal delay in
implementation, orders are issued for
cancellation of land allotted in respect of
following cases:

Sl. | Description Area Order
No. dated
1 | Susheela Associates | 0.50 9.1.2015
Plot No 95/B, Acres
Sy No. 66.
2 |Neo Consultancy 0.061 20.7.2015
Services Plot Sy No | Acres
Part of 14, Shop site
Nos 1 &2
3 |Radiant Info Systems| 0.0379 9.1.2015
Pvt Ltd110K & 110L | Acres
Sy No 68 (1650 sft)

We observe that though orders were issued in
2015, no possession has been taken till the
date of our report.

Periodical Survey is conducted by the company’s
officials and cases of usage of land for the
purposes other than IT & Electronic Units are
identified and placed before the board.

As per the directions of the board, the difference
value at current market prices is charged to the
allottees.

The system of managing the default cases shall
be examined. Have all steps to remedy the
situation taken within the prescribed time limits?
The cases of non-compliance to established
system shall be detailed.

As explained to us, the company is generally
monitoring default cases on a timely/regular
basis to take remedial action on the defaulters.
However in one instance as given in Note

No. 38 (d) of the financial statements, the
company aggrieved by the orders passed by the
Hon’ble High Court of Karnataka has filed a
special leave petition before the hon’ble
Supreme Court on 19.1.2018.
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What is the system of recovering fees /charges
with regard to providing manpower to various
agencies? Report the cases where no such
recovery has been affected and accounted for.

As informed by the management, regular Bill of
Sales are prepared and issued to the department/
organization where the manpower services are
provided and payments are collected on monthly
basis from the departments. Regular follow ups
are also made to collect the outstanding amount
from the departments. The company is releasing
the payments to agencies from whom the
manpower services are obtained and are paid
only after collecting the amount from the
departments. Pending recoveries are classified
as outstanding amounts beyond six months from
the date they have fallen due under Trade
Receivables.

What is the system of receiving revenue share
from the franchise? Report the cases wherein
software, hardware or IT enabled system is lying
redundant/ outdated.

As informed by the management, the franchisee
income received by the company is 15% of the
fee collected by the franchisees and the same
was reviewed while issuing the certificates to the
students. The company has fixed the annual
target fee based on the Hobli, Taluk, District and
Bengaluru area amounting to Rs.35,000/-,
Rs.52,000/-, Rs.86,000/- and Rs.90,000/-
respectively as per the place of franchisee
centre, and the Company is collecting the royalty
charges of Rs.50,000/-, Rs.1,00,000/-,
Rs.1,50,000/- and Rs.1,50,000/- respectively for
Hobli, Taluk, District and Bengaluru area from
new franchisees at the time of allotment.

As informed by the management, there are no
redundant/ outdated software, hardware or IT
enabled systems in the company.

If the audited entity has computerized its
operations or part of it, assess and report, how
much of the data in the company is in electronic
format, which of the area such as accounting,
sales, personnel information, pay roll, inventory
etc. have been computerized and the company
has evolved proper security policy for data/
software/ hardware?

Maintenance of Books of account and Payroll are
computerized. However, it is partly computerized
in the areas of sales, personnel information,
inventory etc.

Periodical backups are taken to protect the data
and adequate measures are taken to protect
software and hardware. A separate EDP section
is also present to monitor data, hardware and
software.

For Dagliya & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Regn.No.: 000671 S

Sd/-
(P. Manohara Gupta)

Partner
Membership No.: 016444
UDIN: 19016444AAAAGR4860

Place: Bengaluru
Date: 11.09.2019
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BACKGROUND

Karnataka State Electronics Development Corporation Limited (KEONICS) was incorporated as a public Limited

Company in September 1976 with the objective of promoting the development of Electronic industry in the State

and to create infrastructure for the rapid growth of Electronic industries. Now it is envisaged to function as a

facilitator and as a catalyst for the development of electronic and IT industries in the State.

Activities of Karnataka State Electronics Development Corporation Limited

1.

IT Education:
Company has a network of around 192 franchisee training centers throughout Karnataka.
Infrastructure Facility Services:

KEONICS has set up Electronics City on a sprawling 332 acres of land on Hosur Road, Bengaluru.
This Electronics City is today a major hub for Information Technology activities. Company has also taken

up establishment of IT Parks at Tier Il cities in the State.
IT Services:

Company has undertaken various projects of providing and programming of IT software to various
Government Departments of Government of Karnataka. KEONICS is also marketing computer hardware,
software and electronic equipments to various Government Organizations. KEONICS is also providing
e-tendering solution ‘Tender Wizard’ to Government Organizations. KEONICS has also signed Memorandum

of Understanding with various agencies to market their products and services.

Company has developed in-house competence in offering consultancy on project implementation to various
Government Departments in the areas of Networking, Web creation, Software Development and

Computerization plans.
Manpower Supply Services:

KEONICS has also entered into the field of providing skilled Manpower Services to various Government

Departments and Organizations
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A. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparation of financial statements:

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention on going
concern basis on accrual system of accounting in accordance with Indian Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
(GAAP) and comply with the Accounting Standards as prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act,
2013 read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and the relevant provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013.

Use of estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires the management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities
on the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses for the period. Actual
results could differ from these estimates. Any revision to accounting estimates is recognized prospectively in the
current and future periods.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost of inventories comprises of all cost of
purchase, cost of conversion and other costs in bringing them to the present location and condition.

Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of
transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The
cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated based on the
available information.

Property, Plant and Equipment

(a) Fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Cost comprises the purchase price and any
attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use. Financing costs, if any,
relating to acquisition of qualifying fixed assets are also included to the extent they relate to the period till
such assets are ready to be put to use. A qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes substantial period of
time to get ready for intended use The assets shown in the Balance Sheet includes such amounts as
relate to this Company and assets acquired out of the grants. All the assets acquired out of grants
up to 31-03-2004 have been taken at Nil value and no depreciation has been provided for. Assets acquired
out of grants on or after 1-4-2004 are shown at nominal value in the Balance sheet.

(b) Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost.
Depreciation

(a) Tangible Assets:

Depreciation on tangible assets is calculated on a straight line basis as per useful life of asset
prescribed under Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013. Residual value in case of all tangible
assets is considered at 5% of the Original cost except in case of computers and computer peripherals,
where it is considered as nil.
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Intangible Assets:

The company's intangible assets consist of computer software, which is amortized over 3 years from the

date of put to use.

Leasehold Land is amortised over the period of lease.

Revenue recognition

Income and expenditure are generally accounted for on accrual basis except Training Services which is recognized

and accounted on cash basis.

Sales are net of trade discounts

Revenue from maintenance contract is considered on a pro rata basis over the period in which such
Services are rendered.

Sale of industrial sheds and lands are recognised after the execution of final sale deed.

Sale proceeds of scrap arising from maintenance and project work are taken into consideration under
other income in the year of sale.

Dividend income is recognized on awarding the right to receive dividend is established.

Compensation award for acquisition of land at Electronic city by Government Authorities are recognized in

the year of receipt.

Lease premium received in respect of leased land at SEZ sector is recognized as lease rent in Proportionate

to the lease period.

Foreign currency transactions

(i)

(i)

Initial Recognition

Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to the foreign currency
amount the exchange rate between the reporting currency and the foreign currency at the date of the

transaction.
Conversion

Foreign currency monetary items are reported using the year end exchange rate. Non-monetary items
which are carried in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the
exchange rate at the date of the transaction; and non-monetary items which are carried at fair value or
other similar valuation denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rates that existed

when the values were determined.
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(i)  Exchange Differences:

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on reporting Company’s monetary
items at rates different from those at which they were initially recorded during the year, or reported in
previous financial statements, are recognised as income or as expenses in the year in which they arise

except those arising from investments in non-integral operations.
Grants

Revenue Grants are treated as income for the year to the extent it is actually spent and shown as contra in
Statement of Profit and Loss Account during the year. The balance amount is carried forward to the next year as

unspent grant.
Investments

Investments are classified into long-term investments and current investments. Investments held/intended to be
held for a period exceeding one year are classified as long-term investments. Current investments are investments
which are readily realizable and are intended to be held for not more than one year from the date on which
investment is made. Long-term investments are carried at cost less provision for diminution, other than temporary
to recognize any decline in the value of such investments. Current investments are carried at lower of cost or fair

value and provision is made to recognize any decline in the carrying value.
Employee Retirement Benefits:

Company’s contribution to Provident Fund is charged to Statement of Profit and Loss. Gratuity, Earned Leave
encashment and Sick Leave Benefit are charged to Statement of Profit and Loss on the basis of actuarial
valuation. Gratuity Liability is discharged by funding with an approved Gratuity Trust. With regard to unencashed
Sick Leave, employees can accumulate up to 100 days and provision is made on the unutilized portion of Sick
Leave.

Borrowing Costs:

Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets are capitalised as part
of the cost of such assets. A qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes substantial period of time to get ready
for intended use. All other borrowing costs are charged to revenue.

Segment Reporting:

Company has identified the business and geographical segments as the organisational units for which information
is reported to the Board of Directors and Managing Director for the purpose of evaluating each unit’s performance
and for making decisions about future allocation of resources. Hence, segment information has been prepared
in conformity with the accounting policies adopted for preparing and presenting the financial statements of the

Company as a whole.
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The Company has identified on the basis of Management information system the reportable primary segments,
viz., IT Services, Infrastructure, Human Resource Services and IT Education. Segments have been identified
and reported taking into account nature of products and services, the differing risks and returns and the internal
business reporting systems. The accounting policies adopted for segment reporting are in line with the
accounting policy of the Company with following additional policies for segment reporting.

a. Revenue and expenses have been identified to a segment on the basis of the relationship to
operating activities of the segment. Revenue and expenses which relate to enterprise as a whole and are
not allocable to a segment on reasonable basis have been disclosed as “Unallocable”.

b. Segment assets and segment liabilities represent assets and liabilities in respective segments. Investments,
tax related assets and other assets and liabilities that cannot be allocated to a segment on reasonable
basis have been disclosed as “Unallocable:

Secondary Segment Information:

There is no reportable geographical segment since the Company caters mainly to needs of Indian Markets.
Leased Assets:

i Finance Leases:

Finance Leases, which effectively transfer to the Company all the risks and benefits incidental to ownership
of the leased item, are capitalized at the lower of fair value and present value of the minimum lease
payments at the inception of the lease term and disclosed as leased assets. Lease payments are apportioned
between the finance charges and reduction of the lease liability based on the implicit rate of return. Finance
charges are charged directly against income. Lease management fees, legal charges and other initial
direct costs are capitalized.

ii Operating Leases:

Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the
leased term are classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments and receipts are recognized as
an expense and income in the Statement of Profit and loss account.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders (after deducting preference dividends and attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the period. Partly paid equity shares are treated as a fraction of an equity share
to the extent that they were entitled to participate in dividends relative to a fully paid equity share during the
reporting period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for
events of bonus issue; bonus element in a rights issue to existing shareholders; share split; and reverse share
split (consolidation of shares).
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Taxes on Income

(a) Provision for Current tax is made on the basis of taxable income estimated in accordance with the provisions
of the Income tax Act, 1961.

(b) Deferred tax resulting from timing differences between taxable and accounting income is accounted for
using the tax rates and laws that are enacted or substantively enacted as on the balance sheet date.

(c) Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date and written down/written up to reflect the
amount that is reasonably/virtually certain (as the case may be) to be realized. The deferred tax asset is
recognised and carried forward for timing difference only to the extent that there is a reasonable certainty
that the assets can be realised in future. However, in case of unabsorbed depreciation and carry forward
of losses, deferred taxes are recognised only if there is virtual certainty that there will be sufficient taxable
income to realise the assets.

Impairment of Assets

At each Balance Sheet date, the Company assesses whether there is any indication that any asset may be
impaired. If any such indication exists, the carrying value of such assets is reduced to its estimated recoverable
amount and the amount of such impairment loss is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss. If, at the
Balance Sheet date, there is an indication that a previously assessed impairment loss no longer exists, the
recoverable amount is reassessed and the asset is reflected at the recoverable amount subject to a maximum
of depreciated historical cost.

Provision, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Obligations, which in the assessment of the Company exist on the Balance sheet date and probably require an
outflow of resources are considered as liabilities and provided for. Contingent Liabilities being i) possible obligation
as a result of past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of
one or more future events not wholly in the control of the Company or ii) Present obligations arising from past
events where it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable
estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be made are not recognized in the accounts. The nature of such
liabilities and an estimate of its financial effect are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. Contingent
assets are neither recognized nor disclosed in the financial statements.
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KARNATAKA STATE ELECTRONICS DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2019

Note Asat Asat
Particulars No. 31.03.2019 31.03.2018
Rs. Rs.
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1) Shareholder’s Funds
(a) Share Capital 1 274,720,000 274,720,000
(b) Reserves and Surplus 2 1,021,399,391 929,864,523
(2) Share Application money pending allotment 3 16,000,000 -
(3) Non-Current Liabilities
(a) Other Long-Term Liabilities 4 128,711,951 78,286,146
(b) Long-Term Provisions 5 38,752,354 35,763,027
(4) Current Liabilities
(a) Trade Payables [Due to Micro, Small and 6 2,180,763,978 | 2,210,836,649
Medium Enterprise - Nil]
(b) Other Current Liabilities 7 860,160,032 969,670,721
(c) Short-Term Provisions 8 109,442,680 88,482,898
TOTAL 4,629,950,386 | 4,587,623,964
ASSETS
(1) Non-Current Assets
(a) Fixed Assets
(i) Property, Plant and Equipment 9(a) 384,803,790 401,425,062
(i) Intangible Assets 9(b) 1,574,904 2,551,084
(iii) Capital Work In progress 9(c) 57,737,658 6,094,902
(b) Non-Current Investments 10 5 5
(c) Deferred Tax Assets (net) 33 5,342,676 2,017,251
(d) Long-Term Loans and Advances 1 338,845,971 206,358,960
(e) Other Non-Current Assets 12 378,326,325 443,658,662
(2) Current Assets
(a) Inventories 13 6,520,171 6,520,171
(b) Trade Receivables 14 1,728,482,728 | 1,715,099,641
(c) Cash and Bank Balance 15 1,558,986,503 | 1,712,385,912
(d) Short-Term Loans and Advances 16 140,441,544 75,350,235
(e) Other Current Assets 17 28,888,111 16,162,079
TOTAL 4,629,950,386 | 4,587,623,964
Significant Accounting Policies and Notes on Accounts A,B &C

As per our report of even date
For Dagliya & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Firm Reg. No. 000671S

Sd/-
P. Manohara Gupta
Membership No.016444
UDIN No. 19016444AAAAGR4860

Place : Bengaluru
Date :11.09.2019

For and on behalf of the Board

Sd/-

T.R. Suresh, IPS
Managing Director

Sd/-

Shailendra Kumar Tyagi
Director

Place : Bengaluru
Date :11.09.2019
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KARNATAKA STATE ELECTRONICS DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2019

Particulars Note For the yearended | For the year ended
No. 31.03.2019 31.03.2018
Bs. Rs.

Revenue:
Revenue from Operations 18 5,354,501,799 | 3,887,502,629
Other Income 19 85,837,574 66,143,975
Grant Income - per contra 207,514,832 167,848,074
Total Revenue 5,647,854,205 | 4,121,494,678
Expenses:
Purchase of Stock-in-Trade 20 1,790,579,835 | 1,287,717,069
Direct Expenses 21 3,239,736,852 | 2,297,446,148
Changes in Inventories of Stock-in-Trade 22 - 1,103,909
Employee Benefit Expenses 23 132,574,708 119,860,866
Depreciation and Amortization Expenses 9(a) & (b) 19,426,511 20,667,462
Other Expenses 24 60,037,850 42,097,783
Grant Expenditure - per contra 207,514,832 167,848,074
Total Expenses 5,449,870,588 | 3,936,741,311
Profit Before Exceptional and Extraordinary ltems and Tax 197,983,617 184,753,367
Add: Prior Period - Income/ (Expenses) 25 (13,883,608) (676,368)
Profit Before Extraordinary Items and Tax 184,100,009 184,076,999
Less: Extraordinary Iltems - -
Profit Before Tax 184,100,009 184,076,999
Tax Expense:
(1) Current tax 74,500,000 66,700,000
(2) Deferred Tax 33 (5,142,530) 200,146
(3) Deferred Tax (Previous Year Expenses) 33 1,817,106 -
(4) (Excess) / Short Provision of Earlier Years (5,104,581) (1,354,509)
Profit After Tax and Exceptional ltems 118,030,014 118,531,362
Earning per equity share:

(1) Basic 42.96 45.79

(2) Diluted 42.96 45.79
Significant Accounting Policies and Notes on Accounts A.B &C

As per our report of even date
For Dagliya & Co.

Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 000671S
Sd/- Sd/-
P. Manohara Gupta T.R. Suresh, IPS
Membership No.016444 Managing Director

UDIN No. 19016444AAAAGR4860

Place : Bengaluru
Date :11.09.2019

For and on behalf of the Board

Sd/-

Shailendra Kumar Tyagi
Director

Place : Bengaluru

Date

:11.09.2019
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KARNATAKA STATE ELECTRONICS DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION LIMITED
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2019

Particulars Note For the year ended 31.03.2019 For the year ended 31.03.2018
No. Rs. Rs.
A. Cash flow from Operating Activities :
Net Profit before Taxation and Extraordinary ltems 184,100,009 184,076,999
Adjustments for :
Depreciation 9(a) & (b) 19,426,511 20,667,462
Interest received from Fixed Deposits 19 (83,156,989) (64,700,722)
Proceeds from sale of Fixed Assets - -
(Profit)/Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets (2,726) (63,733,204) (44,033,260)
Operating profit before working capital changes 120,366,805 140,043,739
Adjustments for :
Decrease in Inventories 13 (0) 1,103,909
Decrease/Increase (-) in Trade Receivables (Net) 14 (13,383,088) (624,948,626)
Decrease in Other Current & Non-Current Assets | 11,12, (312,213,834) (202,151,070
15t017
Decrease in Current & Non-Current Liabilities 4108 (65,208,446) | (390,805,368) 954,744,082 128,748,295
Cash Flow before extraordinary Items (270,438,563) 268,792,034
Less: Extraordinary Expenses - -
Income Taxes 66,069,995 21,145,490
Net cash from Operating Activities- | (336,508,558) 247,646,544
B. Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Purchase of Fixed Assets 9(a) & (b) 1,843,080 (5,276,419)
Capital Work in Progress 9(c) (51,642,756) (6,094,902)
Proceeds from Sale of Fixed Assets 9(a) & (b) 16,753 -
Interest received from Fixed Deposits 19 83,156,989 64,700,722
Net Cash from Investing Activities- Il 33,374,066 53,329,401
C. Cash Flow from Financing Activities
Increase in Share Capital - 26,000,000
Share Application Money Pending Allotment 3 16,000,000 (5,000,000)
Dividend Paid (21,977,600) -
Dividend Distribution Tax Paid (4,517,546)
Net Cash used in Financing Activities- lll (10,495,146) 21,000,000
Netincrease in Cash & Cash equivalents- I + ll+ Il (313,629,638) 321,975,945
Cash & Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 996,534,528 674,558,583
Cash & Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 682,904,890 996,534,528
Significant Accounting Policies and Notes on Accounts | A,B &C

As per our report of even date
For Dagliya & Co.

For and on behalf of the Board

Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 000671S
Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
P. Manohara Gupta T.R. Suresh, IPS Shailendra Kumar Tyagi
Membership No.016444 Managing Director Director

UDIN No. 19016444AAAAGR4860

Place : Bengaluru
Date :11.09.2019

Place : Bengaluru
Date :11.09.2019
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B. NOTES FORMING PART OF THE BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH 2019

Note : 1 Share Capital

Particulars As at 31.03.2019 As at 31.03.2018
Rs. Rs.
(a) Authorised Share Capital
35,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.100/- each 350,000,000 350,000,000
(35,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.100/- each.)
Total 350,000,000 350,000,000

Issued,Subscribed & Fully Paid up Share Capital
27,47,200 Equity Shares of Rs. 100/- each, fully paid up 274,720,000 274,720,000
(24,47,200 Equity Shares of Rs. 100/- each, fully paid up)

Total 274,720,000 274,720,000

(b) Share Capital - Reconciliation of number of shares outstanding at beginning and end of the reporting

period (in Rs.)
Particulars As at 31.03.2019 Asat31.03.2018
No. of Shares Amount | No. of Shares Amount
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 2,747,200 | 274,720,000 | 2,747,200 | 274,720,000

Add: Shares allotted during the year -
Less: Shares bought back during the year -
Shares outstanding at the end of the year 2,747,200

274,720,000 | 2,747,200 | 274,720,000

(c) Share Capital - Details of Shares in Company held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares

Name of the Shareholder As at 31.03.2019

Asat31.03.2018

No. of Shares

% of holding No. of Shares % of holding

Hon’ble Governor, Government of Karnataka 2,747,200
Nominees of Government of Karnataka

100.00% 2,747,200 100.00%

(d) Inthe event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining
assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to

the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

(e) The Company has one class of equity shares having Par Value of Rs 100/- per Equity Share. Each share

holder is entitled to one vote per share.

() The Company has not allotted any shares pursuant to contract, without payment being received
in cash nor by way of bonus shares nor bought back any shares during the immediately preceeding five

financial years.

Note : 2 Reserves and Surplus

Particulars As at 31.03.2019-Rs. | Asat 31.03.2018-Rs
Surplus Balance in Statement of Profit & Loss
Opening Balance 929,864,523 811,333,162
Add: Net profit after tax transferred from Statement of Profit and Loss 118,030,014 118,531,362
Less:Dividend on Equity Shares (21,977,600) -
Less: Tax on dividend on Equity Shares (4,517,546) -
Closing Balance 1,021,399,391 929,864,523
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Note : 3 Share Application Money Pending Allotment

(in Rs.)

Particulars

As at 31.03.2019

As at 31.03.2018

Share Application Money

Terms and Conditions:

Parri passu with the existing equity shares

Company has received share application money of
Rs.1,60,00,000/- received on 25th March 2019

1,60,000 Number of Shares proposed to be alloted at par

Number of Shares proposed to be alloted is on or before
60 days from the date of receipt i.e, 24.05.2019

The Company has sufficent authorized capital to cover the
share capital amount on allotment of shares out of
share application money

16,000,000

Total

16,000,000

Note : 4 Other Long-Term Liabilities

Particulars As at 31.03.2019 As at 31.03.2018

Deposits 64,954,789 64,377,469
Lease Rent Received in Advance 13,757,162 13,908,677
Other Liability (Refer Note No. 42) 50,000,000 -
Total 128,711,951 78,286,146

Note : 5 Long-Term Provisions

Particulars

As at 31.03.2019

As at 31.03.2018

Provisions for Employee Benefits

Provision for Leave Salary (Refer Note No.26(b))

38,752,354

35,763,027

TOTAL

38,752,354

35,763,027

Note : 6 Trade Payables

Particulars

As at 31.03.2019

As at 31.03.2018

Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises (Refer Note No.34)

Dues to Others 2,273,636,267 2,210,836,649
Less: Amount not considered as Payable on back to back (92,872,289) -
transactions (Contra) (Refer Note No.47)

TOTAL 2,180,763,978 2,210,836,649
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Note : 7 Other Current Liabilities

Particulars As at 31.03.2019 As at 31.03.2018

Deposits 200,700,759 89,221,990
Statutory dues payable 46,316,248 32,250,430
Sundry Creditors for capital expenses 14,390,996 13,668,525
Sundry Creditors for expenses 22,573,204 14,978,638
Advance Received from Customers and Others 429,942,610 496,558,488
Unspent Grants 121,608,006 320,267,312
Other Liabilities 2,650,609 2,725,338
Unpaid Dividend 21,977,600 -
Total 860,160,032 969,670,721

Note: Grant unspent during the year is not inclusive of Rs.5,00,00,000/- Relating to amount received from
Govt. of Karnataka towards procurement of land at Hi-tech Defence and Aerospace.

Note : 8 Short-Term Provisions

Particulars As at 31.03.2019 As at 31.03.2018
Provision for Taxation 74,500,000 66,700,000
Provision for VAT Demand 256,000 -
Provision for Employee Benefits :
-Provision for Leave Salary (Refer Note No. 27(b) & 27(c)) 12,056,544 8,765,218
-Provision for Gratuity (Refer Note No. 27(a)) 22,630,136 13,017,680
Total 109,442,680 88,482,898
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in Rs.

Particulars As at 31.03.2019 As at 31.03.2018
Capital Work in Progress - Office Buildings under construction 57,737,658 6,094,902
Total 57,737,658 6,094,902
Note : 10 Non-Current Investments
Particulars As at 31.03.2019 As at 31.03.2018
Unquoted - Trade:
M/S Dr. Shet Magnetic Private Limited 24,000 24,000
240 Equity Shares of Rs.100/- each
Less: Provision for diminution in Value 23,999 23,999
1 1
M/S Karnataka Telecom Limited 2,600,000 2,600,000
78,000 (includes 52000 bonus shares)
Equity Shares of Rs.100/- each
Less: Provision for diminution in Value 2,599,999 2,599,999
1 1
M/S KEONICS Penta Semi Conductors Limited
7,480 Equity Shares of Rs.100/- each 748,000 748,000
Less: Provision for diminution in Value 747,999 747,999
1 1
M/S Swede (India) Teltronics Limited
3,41,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each 3,410,000 3,410,000
Less: Provision for diminution in Value 3,409,999 3,409,999
1 1
M/S Ultrasonic Instrumentations Private Limited
230 Equity Shares of Rs.100/- each 23,000 23,000
Less: Provision for diminution in Value 22,999 22,999
1 1
TOTAL 5 5
Aggreate amount of unquoted investments 6,805,000 6,805,000
Aggregate provision for diminution value of unquoted investements 6,804,995 6,804,995

(Provision has been made against investment in shares. Out of above companies M/S Karnataka Telecom
Limited, M/S KEONICS Penta Semi Conductors Limited and M/S Swede (India) Teltronics Limited are under
liquidation)
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Note : 11 Long-Term Loans and Advances

in Rs.

Particulars

As at 31.03.2019

As at 31.03.2018

Capital Advances

a) Secured, Considered Good :

b) Unsecured, Considered Good :

c) Doubtful

Total - (a)

Security Deposit

a) Secured, Considered Good :

b) Unsecured, Considered Good :

c) Doubtful

Total - (b)

Other Loans & Advances

a) Secured, Considered Good
- Advance to Staff - Vehicle Advance
- Advance to Staff - Computer Advance

b) Unsecured, Considered Good

- Advance to supplier
- Advance to Staff - Others

c) Doubtful
- Project Advances

(Less) : Provision for Doubtful Loans and Advances
Total - (c)
Total of (a) +(b)+(c)

333,762,731 200,000,000
333,762,731 200,000,000
4,426,973 5,464,973
4,426,973 5,464,973
194,267 179,987
47,000 234,000
415,000 480,000
576,953 576,953
1,233,220 1,470,940
(576,953) (576,953)
656,267 893,987
338,845,971 206,358,960

Note : 12 Other Non Current Assets

Particulars As at 31.03.2019 As at 31.03.2018
Prepaid Expenses - 726,882
Earnest Money Deposit-Paid 4,307,992 9,954,832
Advances to Suppliers/Vendors 27,709,332 116,356,576
Other Bank Balances (Margin Money Deposit 205,438,948 178,813,751
Maturing for period beyond 12 Months)
Refund Receivables From Statutory Depts 140,870,053 137,806,620
Total 378,326,325 443,658,662
Note : 13 Inventories
Particulars As at 31.03.2019 As at 31.03.2018
Land at Electronic City 6,414,237 6,414,237
Books 105,934 105,934
Total 6,520,171 6,520,171




|| KEONICS

1SO 9001:2015

Note : 14 Trade Receivables

in Rs.

Particulars

As at 31.03.2019

As at 31.03.2018

Outstanding for a period exceeding six months

(Debts considered good for which the Company holds no security

other than the personal security of debtor)
a) Secured, Considered Good

b) Unsecured, Considered Good
¢) Doubtful

(Less) Amount considered as doubtful on back to back
transactions (Contra)
(Less) Provision for Doubtful Debts

Total - (a)
Others
a) Secured, Considered Good
b) Unsecured, Considered Good
¢) Doubtful
Total - (b)

Total of (a) +(b)

721,309,240 728,293,470
110,710,938 14,579,443
832,020,178 742,872,913
(92,872,289) -
(17,838,650) (14,579,443)
721,309,239 728,293,470

1,007,173,489 986,806,171

1,007,173,489 986,806,171

1,728,482,728

1,715,099,641

Note : 15 Cash & Bank Balance

Particulars

As at 31.03.2019

As at 31.03.2018

Cash and Bank Balance
a) Cash & Cash Equivalents

Cash on hand

Flexi Deposit

Fixed Deposit Maturing within 3 months
Balances with Banks
In Current Account with Scheduled Banks
Total (a)
b) Other Bank Balance

In Fixed Deposits

Fixed Deposit Maturing beyond 3 months

Total( b)
Total of (a) +(b)

106,095 91,173
596,983,216 886,356,490
85,815,579 110,086,865
682,904,890 996,534,528
876,081,613.00 715,851,384
876,081,613 715,851,384

1,558,986,503

1,712,385,912

Note : 16 Short-Term Loans and Advances

Particulars

As at 31.03.2019

As at 31.03.2018

Other Loans & Advances
Unsecured, Considered Good
- TDS Receivables

- Advance to Staff

- Advance to Staff - Vehicle Advance

- Advance to Staff - Computer Advance
- Advance to Staff - Others

- Other Advances

Total

135,701,487 64,290,959
281,002 445,891
239,894 257,607
187,000 230,000

20,628 86,256
4,011,533 10,039,522
140,441,544 75,350,235
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in Rs.
Particulars As at 31.03.2019 As at 31.03.2018
Prepaid Expenses 3,639,622 3,752,579
Interest Accrued but Not Due 22,556,335 12,409,500
VAT deposit for Appeal 2,702,154 -
Total 28,888,111 16,162,079

Note : 18 Revenue from Operations

Particulars For the yearended | For the year ended
31.03.2019 31.03.2018

Revenue from Operations

Sale of Electronic and Information Technology
Related products & Other products

1,878,962,274

1,355,481,931

Sale of Services (Refer Note No. 27 of Notes forming part of accounts) 3,459,258,088 2,498,313,988
Sale of Land - 20,000,000
Other Operating Revenue 16,281,437 13,706,710
Total 5,354,501,799 3,887,502,629
Note : 19 Other Income

Particulars For the yearended | For the year ended
31.03.2019 31.03.2018
Interest on Deposit 83,156,989 64,700,722
Miscellaneous Income 2,680,585 1,443,254
Total 85,837,574 66,143,976

Note : 20 Purchase of Stock -in - Trade
Particulars For the yearended | For the year ended
31.03.2019 31.03.2018

Purchase of Electronic and Information Technology
Related products & Other products

1,790,579,835

1,287,717,069

Total 1,790,579,835 1,287,717,069

Note : 21 Direct Expenses
Particulars For the yearended | For the year ended
31.03.2019 31.03.2018
Manpower Supply Service Expenses 2,453,200,320 1,849,759,758
IT Service Expenses 596,270,722 388,134,217
Training Service Expenses 190,265,810 59,552,173
Total 3,239,736,852 2,297,446,148

a1 1
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Note: 22 Changes in Inventories of Stock-in-Trade in Rs.
Particulars For the yearended |For the year ended
31.03.2019 31.03.2018
Opening Stock 6,520,171 7,624,080
Less: Closing Stock 6,520,171 6,520,171
Total - 1,103,909
Note : 23 Employee Benefit Expenses
Particulars For the yearended |For the year ended
31.03.2019 31.03.2018
Salaries and Incentives 64,894,762 72,281,353
[Expenses net off Government Grants Rs.2,86,56,437/-
(Previous Yr. Rs.1,14,81,878/-)]
Directors Remuneration (Refer Note No.30) 3,385,114 5,852,552
Contribution to Provident Fund 7,753,203 7,097,528
Provision for Gratuity (Refer Note no.27(a)) 22,630,136 13,017,680
Leave Salary Expenses 18,095,617 4,649,979
Staff Welfare Expenses 15,815,876 16,961,774
Total 132,574,708 119,860,866
Note : 24 Other Expenses
Particulars For the yearended |For the year ended
31.03.2019 31.03.2018
Repairs & Maintenance- Building 3,114,534 675,447
Repairs & Maintenance-Vehicles 1,316,030 1,133,725
Repairs & Maintenance- Others 5,115,535 2,495,109
Rent 5,788,041 5,756,627
Professional Charges 6,168,116 5,577,653
Advertisement & Publicity Expenses 1,593,358 1,167,708
Travelling & Conveyance Expenses 3,626,735 3,782,887
Rates & Taxes 898,795 3,594,167
Electricity and Water charges 10,191,343 2,919,604
Contribution towards Corporate
Social Responsibility (Refer Note No.46) 987,180 6,982,580
Security Charges 2,058,056 1,583,945
Meeting Expenses 181,301 841,318
Printing & Stationary 986,579 729,960
Auditor’s remunaration (Refer note No.32) 1,239,000 668,800
Telephone Expenses 452,832 694,383
Commission on Bank Guarantees 99,467 785,362
Bank Charges 144,671 172,000
Postage & Courier 177,749 182,539
Internal Audit Fee 99,000 100,000
Insurance 251,665 59,224
Provision for Net Debtors - Doubtful Debts 4,276,493 -
Loss on sale of assets 12,317 -
Directors Sitting Fees 6,000 161,000
Contribution to Chief Minister’s Relief Fund 10,000,000 -
Miscellaneous Expenses 1,253,053 2,033,745
Total 60,037,850 42,097,783
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Note : 25 Financial Cost in Rs.
Particulars For the yearended |For the year ended
31.03.2019 31.03.2018
Interest claim by IT Dept on TDS matters - 694,213
Interest on delayed payment of TDS - 206,888
Total - 901,101

Note : 26 Prior Period - Income / (Expenses)

Particulars For the yearended |For the year ended
31.03.2019 31.03.2018
Prior Period Income (Interest on IT Refund) 3,261,808 71,050
3,261,808 71,050
Less: Prior Period Expenses - 747,418
Reversal of income of earlier years - Interest on Deposits 12,815,666 -
Reversal of income of earlier years - Others 998,197 -
Prior Period Expenses 3,331,553 -
17,145,416 747,418
Net Adjustment (13,883,608) (676,368)
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C) Other Information

Note 27 : Disclosure under Accounting Standard AS 15 under Projected Unit Credit Method:

(a) : EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (GRATUITY) :

1. Assumptions in Rs.

Particulars 31.03.2019 31.03.2018
Discount Rate (beginning of the year) 7.31% 6.83%
Discount Rate (end of the year) 7.10% 7.31%
Rate of increase in Compensation levels 6.00% 6.00%
Rate of Return on Plan Assets 7.10% 7.31%
2. Table Showing Changes in Present Value of Obligations

Particulars 31.03.2019 31.03.2018
Present Value of Obligation as at the beginning of the year 8,38,77,881 8,21,65,074
Acquisition adjustment - -
Interest Cost 54,90,924 56,91,002
Current Service Cost 24,57,289 22,42,954

Prior Service Cost

Curtailment Cost/ (Credit)

Settlement Cost/ (Credit)

Benefits paid

(1,75,25,278)

(1,67,03,628)

Actuarial (Gain)/Loss on obligations 1,98,68,393 (36,69,585)
Present Value of Obligation as at the end of the year 9,41,69,209 8,38,77,881
3. Table Showing changes in the Fair value of Plan Assets

Particulars 31.03.2019 31.03.2018
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the beginning of the year 7,08,60,201 7,86,98,411
Acquisition Adjustments - -
Expected Return on Plan Assets 50,15,128 52,69,043
Contributions 1,30,17,680 34,66,663
Benefits Paid (1,75,25,278) (1,67,03,628)
Actuarial Gain/( loss) on Plan Assets 1,71,341 1,29,712
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the end of the year 7,15,39,072 7,08,60,201
4, Tables showing Fair Value of Plan Assets

Particulars 31.03.2019 31.03.2018
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the beginning of the year 7,08,60,201 7,86,98,411
Acquisition Adjustments - -
Actual return on Plan Assets 51,86,469 53,98,755
Contributions 1,30,17,680 34,66,663
Benefits Paid (1,75,25,278) (1,67,03,628)
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the end of year 7,15,39,072 7,08,60,201
Funded Status (2,26,30,136) (1,30,17,680)
Excess of actual over estimated return on plan assets 1,71,341 1,29,712

a4 |
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5. Actuarial Gain/ Loss Recognized (inRs.)

Particulars 31.03.2019 31.03.2018
Actuarial Gain/(Loss) for the year -Obligations (1,98,68,393) 36,69,585
Actuarial Gain/(Loss) for the year -Plan Assets 1,71,341 1,29,712
Total Gain/(Loss) for the year (1,96,97,051) 37,99,297
Actuarial Gain/(Loss) recognized in the year (1,96,97,051) 37,99,297
Unrecognized actuarial gains /(losses) at the end of year - -
6. The Amounts recognized in Balance Sheet

Particulars 31.03.2019 31.03.2018
Present Value of Obligation as at the end of the year 9,41,69,209 8,38,77,881
Fair Value of Plan Assets as at the end of the year 7,15,39,072 7,08,60,201

Funded Status

(2,26,30,136)

(1,30,17,680)

Unrecognized actuarial gains/ (losses)

Net Asset/ (Liability) Recognized in Balance Sheet

(2,26,30,136)

(1,30,17,680)

7. Expenses Recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss

Particulars 31.03.2019 31.03.2018
Current Service cost 24,57,289 22,42,954
Past Service cost - Plan amendment - 1,41,52,064
Interest cost 54,90,924 56,91,002
Expected Return on Plan Assets (50,15,128) (52,69,043)
Curtailment Cost/ (Credit) - -
Settlement Cost/ (Credit) - -
Net actuarial Gain/(loss) recognized in the year (1,96,97,051) 37,99,297
Expenses Recognized in the Statement of Profit & Loss 2,26,30,136 1,30,17,680
Note 27(b) : EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (EARNED LEAVE)
1. Assumptions

Particulars 31.03.2019 31.03.2018
Discount Rate (beginning of the year) 7.31% 6.83%
Discount Rate (end of the year) 7.10% 7.31%
Rate of increase in Compensation levels 6.00% 6.00%
Rate of Return on Plan Assets 7.10% 7.31%
2. Table Showing Changes in Present Value of Obligations

Particulars 31.03.2019 31.03.2018
Present Value of Obligation as at the beginning of the year 3,97,10,626 4,66,97,880
Acquisition adjustment - -
Interest Cost 25,99,521 28,91,610
Current Service Cost 24,95,550 21,93,096
Curtailment Cost/ (Credit) - -
Settlement Cost/ (Credit) - -
Benefits paid (82,98,933) (87,21,981)
Actuarial Gain/(Loss) on obligations 86,61,530 (33,49,979)
Present Value of Obligation as at the end of the year 4,51,68,294 3,97,10,626
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3. Table Showing changes in the Fair value of Plan Assets (in Rs.)

Particulars 31.03.2019 31.03.2018
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the beginning of the year 4,10,11,230 4,29,74,205
Acquisition Adjustments - -
Expected Return on Plan Assets 26,94,595 35,96,303
Contributions - 37,23,675
Benefits Paid (82,98,933) (87,21,981)
Actuarial Gain/( loss) on Plan Assets 68,211 (5,60,972)
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the end of the year 3,54,75,103 4,10,11,230
4. Tables showing Fair Value of Plan Assets

Particulars 31.03.2019 31.03.2018
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the beginning of the year 4,10,11,230 4,29,74,205
Acquisition Adjustments - -
Actual return on Plan Assets 27,62,805 30,35,331
Contributions - 37,23,675
Benefits Paid (82,98,933) (87,21,981)
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the end of year 3,54,75,103 4,10,11,230
Funded Status (96,93,191) 13,00,604
Excess of actual over estimated return on plan assets - -
5. Actuarial Gain/ Loss Recognized

Particulars 31.03.2019 31.03.2018
Actuarial Gain/(Loss) for the year -Obligations (86,61,530) 33,49,979
Actuarial Gain/(Loss) for the year -Plan Assets 68,211 (5,60,972)
Total Gain/(Loss) for the year (85,93,319) (27,89,007)
Actuarial Gain/(Loss) recognized in the year (85,93,319) (27,89,007)
Unrecognized actuarial Gains/(Losses) at the end of year - -
6. The Amounts recognized in Balance sheet and

Statements of Profit and Loss

Particulars 31.03.2019 31.03.2018
Present Value of Obligation as at the end of the year 4,51,68,294 3,97,10,626
Fair Value of Plan Assets as at the end of the year 3,54,75,103 4,10,11,230
Funded Status (96,93,191) 13,00,604
Unrecognized actuarial gains/ (losses) - -
Net Asset/ (Liability) Recognized in Balance Sheet (96,93,191) 13,00,604
7. Expenses Recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss

Particulars 31.03.2019 31.03.2018
Current Service cost 24,95,550 21,93,096
Interest cost 25,99,521 28,91,610
Curtailment Cost/ (Credit) - -
Settlement Cost/ (Credit) - -
Net actuarial (gain)/loss recognized in the year 86,61,530 (33,49,979)
Expenses Recognized in the Statement of Profit & Loss 1,37,56,601 17,34,727

ee |
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Note 27(c) : EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (SICK LEAVE)

1. Assumptions (inRs.)

Particulars 31.03.2019 31.03.2018
Discount Rate (beginning of the year) 7.31% 6.83%
Discount Rate (end of the year) 7.10% 7.31%
Rate of increase in Compensation levels 6.00% 6.00%
Rate of Return on Plan Assets Nil Nil
2. Table Showing Changes in Present Value of Obligations

Particulars 31.03.2019 31.03.2018
Present Value of Obligation as at the beginning of the year 48,17,620 54,01,390
Acquisition adjustment - -
Interest Cost 3,52,168 3,68,915
Current Service Cost - -
Curtailment Cost/ (Credit) - -
Settlement Cost/ (Credit) - -
Benefits paid (paid) - -
Actuarial (Gain)/ Loss on obligations 4,70,816 9,52,685
Present Value of Obligation as at the end of the year 56,40,604 48,17,620
3. Table Showing changes in the Fair value of Plan Assets

Particulars 31.03.2019 31.03.2018
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the beginning of the year - -
Acquisition Adjustments - -
Expected Return on Plan Assets - -
Contributions - -
Benefits Paid (paid) - -
Actuarial Gain/( loss) on Plan Assets - -
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the end of the year - -
4. Tables showing Fair Value of Plan Assets

Particulars 31.03.2019 31.03.2018
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the beginning of the year - -
Acquisition Adjustments - -
Actual return on Plan Assets - -
Contributions - -
Benefits Paid (paid) - -
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the end of year - -
Funded Status (56,40,604) (48,17,620)

Excess of actual over estimated return on plan assets
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5. Actuarial Gain/ Loss Recognized (in Rs.)
Particulars 31.03.2019 31.03.2018
Actuarial (Gain)/ Loss for the year -Obligations 4,70,816 9,52,685
Actuarial (Gain)/ Loss for the year -Plan Assets - -
Total (Gain)/ Loss for the year 4,70,816 9,52,685
Actuarial (Gain)/ Loss recognized in the year 4,70,816 9,52,685
Unrecognized actuarial (Gain)/ Loss at the end of year - -
6. The Amounts recognized in Balance sheet and Statements of Profit and Loss
Particulars 31.03.2019 31.03.2018
Present Value of Obligation as at the end of the year 56,40,604 48,17,620
Fair Value of Plan Assets as at the end of the year - -
Funded Status (56,40,604) (48,17,620)
Unrecognized actuarial gains/ (losses) - -
Net Asset/ (Liability) Recognized in Balance Sheet (56,40,604) (48,17,620)
7. Expenses Recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss
Particulars 31.03.2019 31.03.2018
Current Service cost - -
Interest cost 3,52,168 3,68,915
Expected Return on Plan Assets - -
Curtailment Cost/ (Credit) - -
Settlement Cost/ (Credit) - -
Net actuarial (Gain)/ Loss recognized in the year 4,70,816 (9,52,685)
Expenses Recognized in the Statement of Profit & Loss 8,22,984 (5,83,770)
Note 28 : Sale of Services
For the year For the year
Particulars ended 31.03.2019 ended 31.03.2018
Rs. Rs.
Manpower Supply services 2,56,22,81,770 193,02,85,001
Information Technology related services 67,26,10,913 48,97,92,280
Training Services 22,43,65,405. 7,82,36,707
Total 3,45,92,58,088 249,83,13,988

Note 29 : Segment Reporting

The Company has identified on the basis of Management information system the reportable segments, viz. IT
Services, Infrastructure, Human Resource Services and IT Education Services and reported taking into account
nature of products and services, the differing risks and returns and the internal business reporting systems.
The accounting policies adopted for segment reporting are in line with the accounting policy of the Company
with following additional policies for segment reporting.

Rra |
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(Rs. in Lakhs.)

IT | Infrastructure Human IT | Un-allocable
Segment Services Resource Education Total
Services Services

External Turnover 25,516.00 163.00 25,623.00 2,244.00 0.00 53,546.00
(18,452.74) (337.07) | (19,302.85) (782.37) 0.00 | (38,875.03)
Less : Expenditure 24,185.65 130.72 24,939.87 1,927.76 1,046.27 52,230.28
(17,132.97) (101.24) | (18,828.49) (623.87) (795.70) | (37,482.27)
Segment Result 1,330.35 32.28 683.13 316.24 (1,046.27) 1,315.72
[(Profit/(Loss)] (1,319.77) (235.83) (474.36) (158.50) (-795.70) 1,392.76
Interest and Other Income 858.38 858.38
(661.44) (661.44)
Depreciation (194.27) (194.27)
(-206.67) (-206.67)
Net Profit Before Tax 1,330.35 32.28 683.13 316.24 (382.16) 1,979.84
(1,319.77) (235.83) (474.36) (158.50) (-340.93) 1,847.53
Prior period adjustment (138.84) (138.84)
& Extra ordinary ltem (6.76) (6.76)
Excess Provn./ Short in 51.05 51.05
earlier years — Income Tax (13.55) (13.55)
Current Tax (745.00) (745.00)
(667.00) (667.00)
Deferred Tax 33.25 33.25
(2.00) (2.00)
Proposed Dividend (219.78) (219.78)
0.00 0.00
Tax on Proposed Dividend (45.18) (45.18)
0.00 0.00
Net Profit After Tax and Dividend 1,330.35 32.28 683.13 316.24 (1,446.65) 915.35
(1,319.77) (235.83) (474.36) (158.50) |  (-1003.14) 1,185.32

Other Information
Segment Assets 46,299.50 46,299.50
(45,876.24) | (45,876.24)
Segment Liabilities 33,178.31 33,178.31
(33,830.39) | (33,830.39)

b) Secondary Segment Information:

There is no reportable geographical segment since the Company caters mainly to needs of Indian Markets.

i) Revenue and expenses have been identified to a segment on the basis of the relationship to operating
activities of the segment. Revenue and expenses which relate to enterprise as a whole and are not allocable
to a segment on reasonable basis have been disclosed as “Unallocable”.

i) Assets and liabilities that cannot be allocated to a segment on reasonable basis have been disclosed as
“Unallocable”™
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Note 30 : Related Party Disclosures

(i) Key Management Personnel

Sl. | Name of the Related Party
No.

Relationship

Curent Year

Previous Year

A. | SriD. Sudhakar, MLA, Chairman | Key Managerial Personnel
B. | SriB.Shivanna, MLA, Chairman | Key Managerial Personnel
C. | SriRajKumar Srivastava, IFS, |Key Managerial Personnel
Managing Director
D. | Sri Range Gowda, IFS,
Managing Director
E. | Sri O Palaiah, IFS,
Managing Director

Key Managerial Personnel

Key Managerial Personnel

up to 12-04-2018
w.e.f. 07-02-2019

up to 31-07-2018

w.e.f. 17-09-2018

Full year
up to 05-05-2017

w.e.f. 05-05-2017

ii) State Controlled Enterprises

Company, a State Controlled Enterprise of Government of Karnataka, undertakes sales and services activities
with other State Controlled Enterprises of Government of Karnataka. As per Paragraph 9 of Accounting
Standards -18 (Related Party Disclosures), disclosure of transaction with other State Controlled Enterprises is
not required to be shown in the Financial Statements. Hence the transactions with other State Controlled

Enterprises of Government of Karnataka are not disclosed under Related Party Transactions.

Transactions during the year with related parties:
Key Management Personnel

A. Chairman
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
2018-19-Rs. 2017-18-Rs.
Expenditure:
i) Sri. D.Sudhakar, MLA - Salary and Allowances 82,412 24,00,120
ii) Sri.B.Shivanna, MLA - Salary and Allowances 4,15,764 -
TOTAL (A) 4,98,176 24,00,120
B. Managing Director
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
2018-19-Rs. 2017-18-Rs.
Expenditure:
a) Sri. Rajkumar Srivastav, IFS
i) Salary and Allowances - 2,41,597
ii) Leave Salary and Pension Contribution - 66,260
i) Reimbursement of expenses - 4,124
b) Sri. Range Gowda, IFS
i) Salary and Allowances 9,90,884 24,82,491
ii) Leave Salary and Pension Contribution 2,26,920 5,71,039
i) Reimbursement of expenses 64,172 86,921
c¢) Sri. O. Palaiah, IFS
i) Salary and Allowances 12,66,589 -
ii) Leave Salary and Pension Contribution 3,20,373 -
i) Reimbursement of expenses 18,000 -
TOTAL (B) 28,86,938 34,52,432
Grand Total- (C) = (A) + (B) 33,85,114 58,52,552
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Outstanding Payables to Related Parties as at the year end:

Particulars

As on 31.3.2019-Rs.

Ason 31.3.2018-Rs.

Salary & other expenses payable:

i. Sri. D.Sudhakar, MLA -.Chairman - 2,05,490
ii. Sri.B.Shivanna, MLA — Chairman 4,15,764 -
iii. Sri. Raj Kumar Srivastava, IFS — Managing Director - 66,260
iv. Sri. Range Gowda, IFS — Managing Director - 5,71,039
v. Sri O Pallaiah, IFS, — Managing Director 4,83,728 -
Note 31: Earnings per share
Particulars For the year ended | Forthe year ended
315t March, 2019 315t March, 2018
Basic Earnings per share Rs. Rs.
Continuing operations
Net profit/ (loss) after tax for the year from continuing operations (Rs.) 11,80,30,014 11,85,31,362
Net profit/ (loss) for the year from continuing operations attributable 11,80,30,014 11,85,31,362
to the Equity Shareholders
Weighted average number of Equity Shares (No.s) 27,47,200 25,88,362
Par value per share (Rs.) 100 100
Earnings per share from continuing operations-Basic (Rs.) 42.96 45.79
Particulars For the year ended | Forthe year ended
31¢'March, 2019 31¢'March, 2018
Diluted Earnings per share Rs. Rs.
Continuing operations
Net profit/ (loss) after tax for the year from continuing operations (Rs.) 11,80,30,014 11,85,31,362
Net profit/ (loss) for the year from continuing operations attributable 11,80,30,014 11,85,31,362
to the Equity Shareholders (Rs.)
Weighted average number of Potential Equity shares (No.s) 27,47,200 25,88,362
Par value per share (Rs.) 100 100
Earnings per share from continuing operations-Diluted (Rs.) 42.96 45.79
Note32: Auditor’s Remuneration: (in Rs.)
Particulars For the year ended | Forthe year ended
315t March, 2019 315t March, 2018
Statutory Audit Fee 7,50,000 5,50,000
Statutory Audit Fee — 2017-18 differential 2,00,000
Tax Audit Fee 1,00,000 66,000
Tax Audit Fee - 2017-18 differential 34,000
VAT Audit Fee - 52,800
GST Audit Fees 1,50,000 -
Certification Charges 5,000 -
Total 12,39,000 6,68,800
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Note 33: Deferred Tax:

Provision for income taxes has been made in terms of Accounting Standard 22 “Accounting for Taxes on Income”.
Deferred Tax Assets are subject to a valuation allowance that reduces the amount recognised to that which is

more likely than to be realised.

Movement in Deferred Tax Asset / (Liability):

Particulars As at 31-03-2019 | Asat 31-03-2018

(inRs) (inRs)
Net Deferred Tax Asset/ (Liability) at beginning of the year 20,17,251 22,17,397
Less: Deferred Tax Asset/ (Liability) for the previous year adjusted (18,17,106) -
Add: Deferred Tax Asset/ (Liability) for the year 51,42,530 (2,00,146)
Net Deferred Tax Asset/(Liability) at end of the year 53,42,676 20,17,251

The Net Deferred Tax Asset as at the year end comprises the tax impact arising from the timing differences on

account of:

Particulars As at 31-03-2019 | As at 31-03-2018
(inRs) (inRs)
- Provision for Leave Salary 1,77,54,661 1,54,10,335

- Provision for VAT Payment Gujrat and Tripura 2,18,155
- Provision for Gratuity 79,07,875 45,05,159
- Provision for Investment 23,77,937 23,55,073
- Provision for Doubtful Debts 65,89,018 50,45,654
- Provision for Doubtful Advances 2,01,610 1,99,672
- WDV of Assets (Net) (2,97,06,582) | (2,73,15,746)
Total 53,42,676 2,00,146

Note 34: Details of Opening Stock, Purchases, Sales and Closing Stock in value: (Amt. in Rs.)

Product Details Opening Stock Purchases Sales value Closing Stock
Land (Refer Note No.39) 64,14,237 - - 64,14,237
Books* 1,05,934 - - 1,05,934
Total 65,20,171 - - 65,20,171

Note 35:

The Company has not received any intimation from suppliers/service providers regarding their status under the
Micro Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, and hence disclosures if any, relating to amount
due to Micro and Small Enterprises as at the year end together with interest paid/payable as required under the
Act has not been furnished.
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Note 36: Operating Leases:

A. Operating Lease:

Company has leased out the following lands

Sl. | Details Place Year of lease Name of the Lessee Period of lease | Annual lease
No. (Years) rent (Rs.)
I 6 Acres Shivamogga | 2010-2011 Cambridge Builders Pvt Ltd. 99 1,51,515
Il 1 Acre

20 Guntas | Mysore 2017-2018 K.B.L.T.S 99 3,40,392

Above leases are Non-Cancellable. The lease rental income included in the statement of profit & loss for the
year is Rs. 4,94,242 (P.Y Rs. 3,19,380).

Future minimum lease rent receipts under operating leases are as under:

Sl. Particulars Ason 31.03.2019 Ason 31.03.2018
No (Rs.) (Rs.)
i. Receivable not later than one year 4,91,907 4,91,907
i. | Receivable later than one year and not later than five years 24,59,535 24,59,535
ii. | Receivable later than five years 4,46,56,343 4,51,48,250

Note 37: Commitments on Capital Contracts and others (to the extent not provided for)

The Company has undertaken construction of KEONICS Office building on its own land at Peenya | stage,
Bengaluru. The Government of Karnataka has also given its approval for the construction at Peenya.
The project has been entrusted to M/s. Nirmithi Kendra Bangalore Rural District. The total cost of the
project is Rs.4.00 crores. Expenditure incurred up to and as on 31-03-2019 is Rs.1.97 Crore
(Previous Year Rs. 0.02 crores). The amount of contract remaining to be executed is Rs. 2.03 crores
(Previous Year Rs. 3.98 crores)

The Company has undertaken construction of KEONICS WAREHOUSE FOR INCUBATION AND
NURTURING GROWTH OF STARTUPS (K-WINGS) building on the leasehold land at HSR layout,
Bengaluru. The Company proposes to construct ground, first, second, third and fourth floor. The total cost
of the project is Rs.33.71 crores. The Government of Karnataka has also given its approval for the construction.
The project has been entrusted to M/s. | C India Pvt. Ltd and M/s. Renaissance Construction Technologies
Pvt. Ltd are the Technology consultants/PMC. Expenditure incurred up to and as on 31-03-2019 is Rs 3.81
crores (Previous Year Rs. 0.59 crores). The amount of contract remaining to be executed is Rs. 29.90
crores (Previous Year Rs.33.12 crores)

Note 38: Contingent Liabilities (to the extent not provided for)-

(@)

Service Tax Audit was carried by the Audit Team of Commissioner of Central Excise for the period October
2008 to March 2013 and issued a show cause notice demanding an amount of Rs.2,10,75,649/- as service
tax liability, against the said show cause notice, the company made its submissions and supporting documents.
However the said commissioner considering the submissions, passed an order demanding service tax
amount of Rs.2,10,75,649/- and equivalent amount of Rs.2,10,75,649/- as penalty under section 78 of
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Finance Act,1994 and also imposed a penalty of Rs. 21,000/- towards delay in filing ST-3 returns
under section 77 of the Finance Act 1994. Aggrieved by the said order, the Company has filed an appeal
with Hon’ble Customs, Excise and Service Tax Appellate Tribunal under section 86 of the Finance Act 1994
on 12-05-2017.

Period Service Tax Penalty-Rs. Amount Current Status
Demand-Rs. Deposited-Rs.
October 2008 to | 2,10,75,649 2,10,96,649 15,80,674 Pending with Hon’ble Customs,
March 2013 (Deposited Excise and Service Tax
on 28-4-17) Appellate Tribunal

(b) The Company had received show-cause notices for the period April 2013 to June 2017 demanding an

amount of Rs.1,11,51,200/- as service tax liability. Against the said show cause notice, the Company had
made its submissions and supporting documents. However the Additional Commissioner considering the
submissions, passed an order demanding service tax amount of Rs. 1,11,51,200/-. Aggrieved by the said
order, the Company has filed an appeal with Commissioner of Central Tax (Appeals) during July 2019.

Period Service Tax Amount Current Status

Demand-Rs. Deposited-Rs.

April 2013 to March 2014 | 12.39 Lakhs 92,944 (Deposited Pending with Commissioner of

on 09.07.2019) Central Tax (Appeals)

April 2014 to March 2015 | 23.13 Lakhs | 1,73,539 (Deposited
on 09.07.2019)

Pending with Commissioner of
Central Tax (Appeals)

April 2015 to Sep 2015

4.06 Lakhs 30,
on 09.07.2019)

487 (Deposited

Pending with Commissioner of
Central Tax (Appeals)

Oct 2015 to June 2017

71.91 Lakhs

5,39,370 (Deposited

Pending with Commissioner of

on 09.07.2019) Central Tax (Appeals)

(c) Claims againstthe Company not acknowledged as debts to the extent of Rs. 42.89 crores as claimed by the

liquidator of M/s Everonn Educational Limited for the various projects entered by the latter with the Company.

Note 39: Impact of pending litigations on financial statements

(a) The National Highway Authority of India has acquired 1,76,969.72 sq.ft. (4.063 acres) of land for elevated

Highway at NH 7 in Electronic City. The Special Land Acquisition Officer (SLAO) of the NHAI, who initially
awarded a nominal compensation has passed a supplementary award during September-2009 fixing the
compensation at Rs.500 per sq.ft. amounting to Rs.8,84,84,860/-. M/s. NHAI have objected to the award
passed by SLAO for the second time and stated that Arbitrator has to pass the order for this compensation.
The Company has approached the Deputy Commissioner, Bangalore Urban District (Arbitrator) to pass an
order for release of the above awarded amount. Company in the letter addressed to Deputy Commissioner
Bangalore urban District (Arbitrator) requesting to release the preliminary compensation amount of Rs.
8,84,84,860/- already awarded by the SLAO and also mentioned that, Company's claim for additional
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compensation as per rule is prevailed. In response to Company's request, Deputy Commissioner Bangalore
Urban District (Arbitrator) passed an order dated 17.05.2011, directing special land acquisition officer to pay
the compensation amount of Rs. 8,84,84,860/- to the Company immediately. Against the order passed by
the Deputy Commissioner, Bangalore urban district, NHAI has filed a Memorandum of petition under section
34(2) of the Arbitration and Conciliation Act 1996 before the Principal District Judge, Bangalore Rural.
The case is pending before the court. Hence the awarded compensation amount of Rs. 8,84,84,860/- shall
be recognised as revenue in the year of actual receipt of money and the corresponding cost of the Land of
Rs. 10.10 Lakhs reflected under inventories will be reduced accordingly.

The Company allotted during May 1995, CA Site No.2 measuring 0.75 acres in survey No. 22 at Electronic
City Bangalore to M/s. Sapthagiri Enterprises Pvt. Ltd.,. As the plot had come in green belt area, the land
allotted to M/s. Sapthagiri Enterprises Pvt. Ltd., was cancelled during Feb-2002. An alternative site bearing
No. 110 D in survey No.68 measuring 0.75 acre was allotted to the party in January 2008. In the meantime,
the CA site No.2 was acquired by National Highways Authority of India for which an initial compensation of
Rs. 164.51 lakhs was awarded during May 2007. The special land Acquisition officer of NHAI released the
compensation to the Company after obtaining a ‘No Objection Certificate’ from M/s. Sapthagiri Enterprises
.Pvt. Ltd., through an affidavit notarized before a notary. The same was accounted in the books of account
during the year 2007-08.

Subsequently Company has requested the Deputy Commissioner, Bangalore Urban District for additional
Compensation against the development made on the acquired site. The request of the Company was
considered by the Deputy Commissioner, Bangalore Urban District and ordered for additional compensation
of Rs. 1,51,92,369/- during May 2009. M/s. Sapthagiri Enterprises Pvt. Ltd., have also made a claim for the
above said compensation with SLAO.

The Special Land Acquisition Officer has sought the Company to produce ‘No Objection Certificate’ from
M/S. Sapthagiri Enterprises Pvt. Ltd., for release of additional compensation of Rs. 1,51,92,369/-. The
Company has objected for the remarks of the Special Land Acquisition Officer for production of No Objection
certificate from M/S. Sapthagiri Enterprises Pvt. Ltd.

Since there is a dispute regarding claim of additional award by M/s.Sapthagiri Enterprise Pvt. Ltd., and the
Company, the SLAO has heard the statement of both the parities on 30.12.2010 and passed the order for
depositing the award of revised enhanced compensation of Rs.1,44,33,129/- with the Hon’ble Principal Civil
Court, Bangalore as per Section 3 H(4) of National Highway Act of 1956. In the meantime Company has
cancelled the land allotted to M/s. Sapthagiri Enterprises Pvt. Ltd., for non-fulfillment of the conditions of
land allotment. Against the cancellation order M/s. Sapthagiri Enterprises Pvt. Ltd., have filed a writ petition
in the Hon’ble High Court of Karnataka. The case is pending in the Hon’ble High Court of Karnataka. The
enhanced compensation amount will be accounted in the books of account during the year of actual receipt.

The Company had received an order from Karnataka Live Stock Development Agency (Department of
Animal Husbandry and Veterinary Services) Government of Karnataka, for supply of Micro-Chip based
RFID Tags for a value of Rs.9,45,00,000/- during the year 2014-15. Against the said order the Company
has received an advance of Rs. 4,47,50,000/- for execution of the project. (Out of which Rs.2,47,50,000/-
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was returned to the department on 15" May, 2015). The Company selected Strategic Outsourcing Services
Private Limited to implement the project and paid an advance amount of Rs.2,00,00,000/- against the Bank
Guarantee. The Department of Animal Husbandry and Veterinary Services vide their letter dated
08-01-2015 changed the original scope of work and directed to supply the Ear Tags instead of RFID Tags
and also stated that they should refund the money in case Ear Tags are not supplied. The request of the
Company to retain the original scope of work was rejected by the department vide their letter dated
31-01-2015. Consequently, Company cancelled the order placed on Strategic Outsourcing Private Limited
and requested them to refund the advance of Rs.2,00,00,000/-. Against the said cancellation, Strategic
Outsourcing Services Private Limited have filed a Writ petition before the Hon’ble High Court of Karnataka.
The Hon’ble High Court since then has stayed the order of cancellation and ordered the Company not to
encash the Bank Guarantee. The case is pending in the High Court of Karnataka.

(d) The Company had allotted 0.25 acres of land at a price of Rs.28,75,000/- to M/s. Kumon Entertainments
and Hospitalities (P) Ltd (the buyer) for setting up IT Industry. The Company later through a Board Resolution
allowed the buyer for setting up a hotel for an additional consideration of Rs.5,00,000/-. Upon audit observation
of Comptroller and Auditor General of India, company later demanded an additional amount of
Rs. 83,25,000/- from the buyer. Aggrieved by the same, the buyer preferred on appeal with Hon’ble High
Court of Karnataka. The Hon’ble High Court of Karnataka passed an order vide dt.03.09.2015 directing the
company to execute the sale deed in favour of the petitioner, provided original consideration has been
received from the buyer and further directed that sale deed shall be completed in favour of the buyer in an
expeditious manner but not later than six weeks from the date of receipt of the order.

The Company did not act on the directions of the Hon’ble High Court of Karnataka against which the buyer
filed a contempt petition with Hon’ble High Court of Karnataka. In the meanwhile company filed a review
petition with Hon’ble High Court of Karnataka, Bangalore, which was disposed of against the Company.
Aggrieved by the same, Company has filed a writ appeal to Hon’ble High Court of Karnataka, Bangalore,
which was also dismissed. Aggrieved by the order passed by the Hon’ble High Court of Karnataka, the
Company filed a Special Leave Petition before the Hon’ble Supreme Court on 19-01-2018. The case is
pending.

Note 40 : Bank Guarantees

The below mentioned Bank Guarantees are given in favour of various Government departments and Agencies

for execution of orders:

Particulars As at 31-03-2019 As at 31-03-2018

(inRs) (inRs)
State Bank of Mysore - 50,00,000
Vijaya Bank 13,43,50,965 | 10,60,19,424
Total 13,43,50,965 11,10,19,424
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Note 41:

(a) The Company has undertaken Mahithi Sindhu Project during 2007-08, a scheme sponsored by Government

of Karnataka for imparting Computer training to Government High school students. The Company is of the
view that the said project is not in the nature of commercial training and hence Service Tax is not applicable.
In this regard the company discontinued payment of Service Tax from 01.08.2009 and claimed refund of
Service Tax for the year 2007-08 and 2008-09 amounting to Rs. 55,74,161/- and Rs. 48,64,868/- respectively.
The said refund claim was rejected by the Assistant Commissioner, Division-1 vide its letter dated 31.05.2011.
The Company against the said order had preferred an appeal on 21.03.2013 with the Commissioner of

Central Excise (Appeals) Bengaluru which was also rejected.

The Company again has preferred an Appeal with the Hon’ble Customs, Excise and Service tax Appellate
Tribunal on 11.01.2017 against the said order of Commissioner of Central Excise (Appeals). The Company
has paid an amount of Rs. 1,91,91,670/- to Service Tax Authorities pending final disposal, out of the amount

received from DSERT (Govt. of Karnataka) for this project.

(Amount in Rs.)

Year Service Tax Demand Service Tax Paid Current Status

2007-08 55,74,161 55,74,161 Pending with Hon’ble Customs, Excise
2008-09 48,64,868 48,64,868 and Service Tax Appellate Tribunal
2009-10 87,52,641 87,52,641

(b) The Company has received an order from Government of Arunachal Pradesh for Rs. 30,87,28,774/- during

the year 2011-12 for setting up of State Data Centre. The Company in turn had entrusted the work to
M/s. Everonn Education Ltd., Chennai, for Rs. 29,63,79,623/-. For obtaining project advance the Company
requested the sub-contractor M/s. Everonn Education Ltd., Chennai to arrange Bank Guarantee for
Rs.9,20,40,174/- directly in favour of Government of Arunachal Pradesh. Upon submission of Bank Guarantee
Government of Arunachal Pradesh had released an advance of Rs.9,20,40,174/- to the Company and the
Company in turn had released an advance amount of Rs.8,65,17,732/- to M/s. Everonn Education Ltd.,
Chennaion 03.09.2011. Materials were procured by the Company and were ready for executing the project
and requested the Government of Arunachal Pradesh to identify and provide the site for implementing the
project.

Meanwhile Government of Arunachal Pradesh sent a notice of cancellation dated 01-08-2013 mentioning
that KEONICS has violated the terms of MOU and failed to implement the project and invoked the Bank
Guarantee provided of Rs.9,20,40,174/-. Aggrieved by this, the Company filed a Writ petition in the High
Court of Gauhati questioning the action of Government of Arunachal Pradesh and the Hon’ble Court of
Gauhati has stayed the impugned notice dated 01-08-2013, issued by Government of Arunachal Pradesh
and directed both the parties to mutually appoint an Arbitrator. The Arbitrator appointed after hearing both
the parties and going through the agreement entered, passed an award on 14" March, 2017 stating that the

contract is not a legally valid and enforceable contract and consequently the claims made by both the

=71

77



|| KEONICS

1SO 9001:2015

parties are liable to be dismissed. Consequent to the above, the company has netted of the advance amount
paid to M/s. Everonn Education Ltd., Chennai of Rs.8,65,17,732/- against advance received from Government
of Arunachal Pradesh.

(c) The Company had entered a contract with Department of Information Technology, Government of
Arunachal Pradesh, for setting up a state wide area network at Arunachal Pradesh during 2008-09 for
Rs. 38.23 Crore. The Company in turn had made a back to back agreement with M/s Everonn Educational
Limited., Chennai. Network equipment’s were procured and commissioned during March 2011 after resolving
various civil and power related issues at the project site. The project was stranded with the difficulties
relating to irregular/ unstable power supply, non-motorable road, security issues, bandwidth problems with
BSNL etc., at the various project sites, the sub-contractee (M/s. Everonn Educational Limited) corresponded
with to the Department of Information Technology, Govt. of Arunachal Pradesh.

Meanwhile the Department of Information Technology, Govt. of Arunachal Pradesh sent a notice of terminating
the contract by serving two months’ notice to the Company. The Company in turn made a writ petition to
Hon’ble Gauhati High Court, challenging the termination notice. The Hon’ble Gauhati High Court appointed
arbitrator upon the dispute. The arbitrator on 07.09.2018 has passed an order in favour of the Company
awarding Rs. 24.39 crores towards incurring of capital expenditure and entry tax.

The Department of Information Technology, Govt. of Arunachal Pradesh has appealed against the arbitration
award on 20.12.2018 at District Court YUIPA Arunachal Pradesh. Pending disposal of the appeals, no
adjustment carried out to the amounts outstanding under trade payables of Rs. 8.57 crore and trade
receivables of Rs. 9.37 crore have been made in the books of account.

Note 42:

Amount received from Central/ State Government as grants on behalf of third party beneficiaries are not considered
as grants of the company and are treated as normal project receipts. Project receipts of such grants are recognized
in the profit and loss account on accrual basis under matching concept. If the period of execution and completion
of any such project goes beyond a financial year, percentage of completion method is applied as per the
requirements of AS 7 and in respect of service contracts as per the provisions contained in AS 9. In respect of
those grants where the Company is the beneficiary, then the provisions contained in AS 12 are applied.

Note 43:

As per the directions of Government of Karnataka an amount of Rs. 20 Crores was released on 30.04.2010 to
M/s. Karnataka Industrial Area Development Board as initial deposit for acquisition of land for Information
Technology Investment Region Project Phase |, at Bangalore International Airport Ltd., region. KIADB vide
allotment letter dated 16-11-2016, have allotted 12.13 acres of land in the Amenity Plot no.4 of Hitech Defence
and Aerospace Park (IT Sector), Devanahalli, Bengaluru District, at a cost of Rs.33.36 Crores. For payment of
Rs.13.36 crores, company requested the government vide letter dated 09-07-2018 to release an amount of
Rs.10 Crores as grant. The Company has paid Rs.13.36 Crores to KIADB on 30.10.2018 and Rs.1.23 Lakhs on
07.12.2018 towards Slum Cess. Though the company has requested Govt of Karnataka vide its letter dated
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09.07.2018 to release Rs.10 Crores as grant towards the above, the Government has released Rs.5 Crores only
vide its letter KBITS/46/ADM/2018-19 dated 18.02.2019 and this grant of Rs.5 Crores has been shown under
other long-term liabilities which will be set off against the capitalization of land in the books as and when KIADB
gives possession of land to the company. The amount of Rs.33.38 Crores deposited with KIADB so far is shown
as capital advances under the head Long-term loans & Advances.

Note 44:

During financial year 2017-18, Government of Karnataka has released an amount of Rs.1.73 crores to the
Company for making Company’s contribution as SPV partner in the newly formed Mysore ESDM Cluster, a
special purpose vehicle. The amount so received of Rs.1.73 crores from the Government has been released
during the year to the ESDM Cluster as a SPV partner. An amount of Rs.25,000/- has also been paid towards
subscription for 25,000 equity shares of Rs.1/- each in the Mysore ESDM Cluster. No allotment of shares is
understood to have been made so far. The amount of Rs.25,000/-paid by the Company is shown as advance
paid for investment under Short term loans and advances.

Note 45:
There were no Foreign exchange inflow and outflow during the Financial Year 2018-19.
Note 46:

As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, a Company meeting the applicability threshold, needs to spend
at least 2% of its average net profit for the immediately preceding three financial years on Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR) activities. The areas for CSR activities are eradication of hunger and malnutrition, promoting
education, art and culture, healthcare, destitute care and rehabilitation, environment sustainability, disaster relief
and rural development projects.

CSR committee has been formed by the company as per the Companies Act, 2013.

a) The gross amount required to be spent by the company during the year is Rs.23,21,146/- (Previous Year
Rs.14,20,919/-)

b) The details of amount spent during the year on CSR activities are as follows:

(In Rs.)
Sl CSR Activities In Cash Yet to be Total
No. paid in cash
1 Construction / acquisition of any asset - - -
2 On Purpose other than (1)above 9,87,180 - 9,87,180
(69,82,580) - (69,82,580)
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Note 47:

The Company was in the practice deducting expenses from the maintenance receipts directly and showing the
net figure of such receipts in the profit and loss account. In the current year, as per the requirement of statute,
maintenance receipts have been presented at gross value and expenditure has been taken to the respective
heads.

Note 48:

Though Rs. 11.07 crore is considered doubtful, Trade receivables considered doubtful is covered by back to
back contract agreement with the vendors having a margin retained by the Company. Hence, the provision Rs.
1.78 crore represents net margin.

Note 49:

The Board of Directors have proposed a dividend at the rate of 4% on paid up equity share capital of the
Company for the financial year ended 31 March,2019 at their meeting held on 11" September, 2019. Accounting
for the same will be made in the year of declaration of dividend, in terms of para 8.5 of Accounting Standard 4 —
Contingencies and events occurring after the Balance Sheet date, as amended.

Note 50:

Figures of the previous year have been re-grouped and re-classified wherever necessary to confirm with the
current year classification to the extent necessary as per Schedule Il of Companies Act, 2013.

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board
For Dagliya & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 000671S
Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
P. Manohara Gupta T.R. Suresh, IPS Shailendra Kumar Tyagi
Membership No.016444 Managing Director Director
UDIN No. 19016444AAAAGR4860
Place : Bengaluru Place : Bengaluru
Date :11.09.2019 Date :11.09.2019
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